
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
THURSDAY FEBRUARY 9, 2023 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 7:30 AM 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 
a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the January 17, 2022, Regular City 

Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1: Checks No. 21781-21788, Batch #2: Checks 

No. 21789-21800, Batch #3: Checks No. 21801-21822). 
c. Agriculture Preserve Application for the following property: 

• 35-118-24-14-0002 
d. Approve Hennepin County Recommended Local Board of Equalization Meeting Date – 

Tuesday, April 4th, 2023, at 6:00 PM. 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc. 
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 

7. Tom Koch (Applicant/Owner) is requesting that the City consider the following 
review/discussion for the property generally located at 5865 Koch’s Crossing (PID No’s. 11-118-
24-12-0004, 11-118-24-13-0003, 11-118-24-31-0005, 11-118-24-13-0002, 11-118-24-42-0001, 
11-118-24-42-0002) in Independence, MN: 

 
a. RESOLUTION 23-0209-01 – Considering approval of the Final Plat and Development 

Agreement to allow a 33-lot subdivision to be known as KOCH FARM SANCTUARY.   
 

8. Chad Greenway (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the 
properties located at 2171 Copeland Rd. and 2052 Nelson Rd., Independence, MN (PID No. 19-
118-24-14-0001 and 19-118-24-13-0003): 

  
a. RESOLUTION 23-0209-02 – Considering approval of a minor subdivision to permit a 

lot line rearrangement to adjust the property line that runs east and west between the two 
subject properties.   
 



  

9. Consider Approval of the Proposed Auditor Contract with BerganKDV and Authorize the Mayor 
and City Administrator to Execute an Engagement Letter. 
 

10. Open/Misc. 
 

11. Adjourn. 



 City of Independence           1 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. January 17, 2023 

 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday, January 17, 2023–6:30 P.M. 
City Hall Chambers 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER.  

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called 
to order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m.  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

  3.   ROLL CALL 
 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson and Councilors McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. 
ABSENT: None. 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Administrative Services Director Simon, and  
 WHPS Director Kroells. 
VISITORS: See Sign-in Sheet. 

  
4. Representative Kristin Robbins (House District 37A) – Annual Legislative Update 
 
I’m new to District 37A and am excited to represent you and our constituents. Please consider me a resource 
for anything going on at the state. I was pleased to see Chief McCoy there today for Fire Fighters’ Day. We 
can arrange public tours for families. I’m serving on Rules, Taxes, and Higher Ed Committees. I’m 
furiously introducing bills which I include in my weekly newsletter that goes out every Friday. Please email 
rep.kristin.robbins@house.mn.gov to receive it or to reach out to me or visit 
https://www.house.leg.state.mn.us/members/profile/15504 for text or email updates and more. I was first 
elected in 2018, so I still feel relatively new. I try to share the perspective of what’s surprising to me and 
what might be new or of interest. Currently, I’m working on bills regarding Hwy 55 Safety Corridor 
Coalition and had sent a letter of support of the Hwy 55 Corridors of Commerce Application but also 
separately, based on the advice from staff, we are drafting a bonding bill. So, whether or not we get the 
Corridors of Commerce Application, we have a Plan B. When I get my jackets back (the version you’d 
introduced), I’m planning on asking all Hwy 55 Coalition Members to co-author it. Mayor Johnson shared 
Rep. Klevorn had worked on it last year. Rep Robbins sees Rep. Klevorn almost daily on Higher Ed and 
will reach out to her, too. Another bill which former Rep. Hertaus used to carry is the Small Cities Grant 
program that will help with local small cites that don’t receive LGA. It had expired and never became a 
regular part of the budget, so my bill will revive that. Additionally, I was the first to introduce a bill to fully 
eliminate tax on Social Security and now many have followed. There are many versions, so we want to push 
it across the finish line as there is bipartisan support for that. The Governor and some House leadership are 
not sure about a full repeal. Minnesota is one of the few states which still taxes Social Security, and our 
intention is to push for full reveal as it is a problem for Seniors on a fixed income. Other bills are for the 
RND Tax Credit and Dependent Care/ Childcare Care Credit to help families. I will request hearings on all 
of these. Other personal priorities are the K-3 Literacy Bill to help students who lost grounds during the 
Covid school shutdowns, and test scores revealed that it wiped out 20 years of Reading and Math gains. We 
have bipartisan support on this bill. I will be reintroducing a bill to stop social media companies from 
targeting young people with unsolicited content. After passing with broad bipartisan support in all the House 



 City of Independence           2 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. January 17, 2023 

 

 

and Senate Committees yet didn’t get off the floor there last year, we are trying again. More updates will be 
included in my weekly newsletter. Thursday’s bills will include one going beyond codifying ROE making 
abortion legal in statute in Minnesota up until the point of delivery. Another would allow the forecast in 
state government to build into the baseline budget inflation every year growing government without much 
legislative oversight. It doesn’t seem like the best direction, so I will be looking more into that. 
 
Grotting – $17 billion? (Yes.) Can you talk a little about that and what the discussions are? It seems like 
instead of authoring bills maybe authoring repeals of bills.  It just seems so crazy to us. 
Robbins – I couldn’t agree more! February 2023’s Surplus Forecasts are expected to be higher than 
November 2022’s $17.6 billion Surplus, thus I have a lot of tax relief bills. While there is some talk about 
returning some of the Walz Surplus (one-time checks of about $1,000 to each household), I personally 
believe that a more responsible way to return the surplus is through permanent tax cuts because we are 
clearly overtaxed in Minnesota. We increased the budget by 11% in the last biennium, and we still have $18 
billion surplus! Minnesota is in the top 5 states for high Corporate tax, Personal Income tax, 1 of 6 states 
that still has Estate tax, and 1 of 11-13 states which still tax Social Security.  On every metric, we are out of 
whack across the country which really hurts our competitiveness. The different bills I’m introducing will 
give families more money in the long run but also shrink what is available for politicians to spend by 
discontinuing the double-digit growth of the size of government. (Are you getting any support?) I do think 
something will happen for Social Security. As much as I’m working hard to get rate reductions, just today I 
heard the Majority party introduced a 5th tier income tax step on incomes (12% tax rate over $250k). We 
would be the highest or the 2nd highest income taxed state in the country. In my view, they are going in the 
wrong direction and are wanting to spend most of the surplus from the bills they have introduced and new 
programs or one-time spending. So, we definitely have our work cut out for us!  
 
McCoy – Can you comment on legalization of marijuana? 
Robbins- The Majority Party tried to do that last session; it failed in the House and the Senate stopped it. 
The Majority is the majority in both House and Senate now, so we may not be able to stop it this year. It 
takes away local control. So, if your city did not want to have a cannabis shop, currently drafted statutes 
prohibit cities’ ordinances from denying that right to operate. Many communities do not want this as we saw 
with the edibles bill that most cities put a moratorium on. It is very concerning in many areas- the 
legalization and how they are rolling it out. We plan for more deep discussions on the floor. It’s a 70/60-40 
majority in the House. I don’t know we can stop it.  
Grotting – Why would that be the priority of the legislative majority?  
Robbins - I door knocked all Fall and across party line, it didn’t matter. The concerns I did hear were safe 
communities, schools, government to work, and affordable life as common-sense priorities mentioned 
across the board. The public is not nearly divided as the press makes it seem to be. None of those were 
mentioned as top priorities so far. 
Johnson – I emailed you today regarding a letter from the Department of Natural Resources regarding 
permits. 
McCoy – I think many residents also got the letter, too. It sounds like you’re going down the Luce Line.  
Johnson – They told me that we were a starter, and they are going along the Luce Line Trail. Our family 
was there before the Luce Line Trail but now want us to pay a $2k application fee for a permit to drive 
across the trail.  
Robbins – For context, Minnesota will only charge cannabis operators a one-time $250 lifetime license fee. 
I will follow-up with you on that. 
Johnson – They’re wanting us to prove from 160 years ago. I don’t know when the trail began.  
Betts- The Luce Line Trail paid where it went through those lands. (Johnson- They paid paper.) I was on the 
original committee before it was passed as a trail through the State.  Lots of farmers wanted their land back 
and claimed that the Luce Line Railroad did not pay them for their property. They were wanting to break up 
the Luce Line Trail by reclaiming their land. One brought it to court saying they had move the trail to the 



 City of Independence           3 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. January 17, 2023 

 

 

person’s border because he had proof and didn’t get payment. I don’t know how they settled that because 
the trail is still there. The Railroad maybe didn’t even legally own parts of it. 
Johnson - The legislature gave that authority for DNR to take it over, but this is a current thing happening 
now.  It’s good to know others got letters, too.  
McCoy - If you own land on both sides of the RR, you have to get across it. 
Johnson - Thank you for coming out, Rep. Robbins. 
 
 
5. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will 
be acted on by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If 
discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be 
considered separately. 

 
a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the December 20, 2022, Regular City Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of City Council Minutes from the January 6, 2023, Special City Council Meeting. 
c. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 - Checks No. 21708-21725 -Approved Dec 20, 2022- 

and Batch #2 - Checks No. 21726-21728 and Batch #3 - Checks No. 21755-21780). 
d. 4th Quarter Building Permit Report (for information only) 
 

 
Motion by Betts, seconded by Spencer to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, 
Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 5.0 
 

6. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 
 

Hwy 55 Corridor  
 

7. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 

Grotting attended the following meetings: 
• None 

 
Spencer attended the following meetings: 

• Special 1/6/2022 Council Meeting to approve checks 
 
McCoy attended the following meetings: 

• Fire Commission Meeting 1/9 
• Rep. Robbins Fire Services Day at the Capital 
• Medina Shared Services 1/4 

 
Betts attended the following meetings: 

• Fire Commission Meeting 1/9 
• Hwy 12 Coalition Meeting Thursday 

 
Johnson attended the following meetings:  

• National League of Cities Energy and Environment Committee (virtual)  
• Kermit Detrick’s service (Delano) 



 City of Independence           4 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. January 17, 2023 

 

 

• Regional Council Mayors meeting  
• Maple Plain Fire Dept Meeting  
• Chamber of Commerce Mtg 
• NW League with new council members 
• Hwy 12 Hearing  
• Executive Committee Hwy 55 (virtual)  
• Hwy 55 Corridor Coalition & MNDot officials (virtual) – a resolution coming  

 
Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

• Parks coming up for youth organizations 
• MetCouncil Comp Plan approval 

 
Simon attended the following meetings: 

• None 
 
 
8. West Hennepin Public Safety – Director Gary Kroells: Presentation of the December 2022 Activity 
Report. 
 

Through December 2022 WHPS has handled 4,579 incident complaints for the year. 169 were in 
Independence and 87 were in Maple Plain for December.  We are a few 100 ICR’s less than last year, 
but keep in mind that for 9 months, we were without 1 full-time officer and are still in that hiring 
process. We have a lack of applicants locally and statewide.  Only 50 new officers coming into the 
market every semester with 750 officers short in the state of MN.   
 
Highlighting a few cases- Personal Injury Crash off County Road 6 & Co Rd 19: The driver was backing 
out of his driveway with a large trailer into the lane with oncoming traffic. There were minor injuries, 
and the driver was cited for failure to drive with due care. Medical on Broadmoor Drive: The officer was 
able to help a resident who had trouble with their oxygen generator. He determined the improperly 
sealed humidifier was causing it to leak and resolved the issue. Arrest-Stolen Vehicle Recovered: After 
an initial traffic stop near Hwy 12 and Halgren Rd, it turned into an eastbound pursuit which ended near 
Hwy 394 to 101 South ramp with a neighboring agency’s assistance who had deployed stop sticks. The 
driver was transported to the hospital for a blood draw for the DWI and the passenger was transported to 
the County Jail. Vehicle in the Ditch: 7300 block of Hwy 12. With the new Hwy 12 and old Hwy 92 
going South toward Co Rd 6, St. Boni, Lyndale, apparently GPS hasn’t caught up with the Hwy 12 
corrections yet. Hwy 92 South doesn’t go there anymore, and the new road is called Cardinal Way now. 
Drivers who follow their GPS to turn left end up in the ditch. Those who attended Hwy 12 Coalition 
Corridor Meeting heard we had 2 of these calls already. The officer found the driver of the vehicle had a 
suspended driver’s license and was cited. A friend came to pick him up and a tow truck had already been 
called.  
 
See the full report in the meeting’s packet.  
 
Johnson – How is the officer hiring process going? 
Kroells- Background checks have been completed, and the Sergeants and I are reviewing them now. 
Then after our decision, we will move to Psychological and Physical Fitness exams, and by tomorrow 
we will know which direction we are going. The reality is that 100+ cities are looking for officers, and 
most are looking to hire multiple officers. WHPS is competing against 200-300 jobs available statewide, 
and that is not counting the 300 that Minneapolis needs or the 250 that our State Patrol need. Of the 700-
800 jobs that we are short in MN, Minnesota colleges are only graduating 50 officers per semester.  



 City of Independence           5 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. January 17, 2023 

 

 

Johnson – Thank you to your staff for all that they are doing and plus with weather conditions on top of 
that now, too.  
 
 

9. Annual City Council Appointments. 
 

a. RESOLUTION 23-0117-01 - Annual Organizational Appointments.   
 

Mayor Johnson opened the discussion for appointment assignments.  
Grotting – I would like to shed responsibility of LMCC/Lake Minnetonka Cable Commission. 
Meetings are Thursday evenings once a quarter.   I nominate Spencer. 
Spencer – Any issues going on there?  
Grotting –Nothing that I am aware of. I am happy to exchange. The more we switch things up 
and get more experience in different areas.  
Spencer – I will take on LMCC and can do Thursday nights. I just can’t do things during the day.  
Grotting – We are positioned to make significant progress that has nothing to do with LMCC.  
Johnson – You have been a good cushion for the City. Can you be the alternate if Brad cannot 
go?  
Grotting - Yes. I am happy to be engaged with the broadband in the City. We’re closing in on 
some new services that are going to surpass anything that the LMCC has provided. We do get an 
allowance of 1 mile a year from LMCC, and Mark, you and I have discussed this broadband 
expansion but not that 1 mile allowance. There’s no great burden with the position.   
Spencer – Joe Baker is willing to continue, and we are grateful for his involvement as there’s 
been a lot of change on that commission.  
 

Motion by McCoy, seconded by Spencer to approve RESOLUTION 23-0117-01 with the LMCC 
change mentioned. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: 
None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 

 
Johnson – Regarding the official newspaper: Crow River News is lead one, but somehow the 
Delano Herald is listed with so little subscribers. With half the City in the Delano School 
District, I thought more residents would be getting that Delano Herald paper rather than the 
Crow River News.  
Spencer – Part of the Western part of the city has the Delano zip code, so we’re missing about 
10% of the western community that is not being counted which are largely in the Delano schools. 
Simon – They were unable to break it down by Independence residents specifically only by the 
zip codes, and we have several zip codes in Independence. 
Kaltsas – We switched to Crow River News for our primary for legal purposes. It’s hard to 
manage 3 official newspapers with differing deadlines. With holidays, one pushes the deadline 
back and the other forward. It’s easier to keep Crow River News as our official paper and we try 
to publish in all 3 and do our best but don’t want to be caught in a technicality. 
Spencer – Is there a way we can post legal notices in papers where it’s more appropriate for the 
particular part of the community, the Planning Commission items, etc. for the Western portion 
for the Delano Herald? 
Kaltsas – We do and did discuss that. The reality is that these numbers keep going down, and we 
do post everything on our website right away, too. We look at subscriber numbers. With Crow 
River and Laker Pioneer being the same publisher, those do get published the same. We’re 
getting almost 2,000 residents with those. 
 

 



 City of Independence           6 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. January 17, 2023 

 

 

b. RESOLUTION 23-0117-02 - Approval of Planning Commission Reappointment. 
• Reappointment of Planning Commission Member Leith Dumas. 

 
 

Motion by Grotting, seconded by Spencer to reappoint Leith Dumas to the Planning Commission, 
RESOLUTION 23-0117-02. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. 
Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 

 
10. Annual Fee Schedule Adoption. 

 
a. RESOLUTION 23-0117-03 - Considering the Annual Update to the City's Fee Schedule. 

 
Minor suggestions –  
Kaltsas- Annually we review the Fee Schedule for nexus of proportionality between the fees 
charged and services provided by the City. We look at what those are and go back year over year 
for true costs of providing them. The Quarterly Sewer Access Charge, we’ve done 2 different 
rate studies, and for many years the City carried and covered the rising costs of sewer without 
increasing rates. Our Auditors and Financial Consultants identified that we were going to run 
into a significant issue at some point and that the residents would eventually subsidizing the 
sewer users. With that we adopted a study in 2015, 2017, and 2020, and were able to hedge that a 
bit. Last year there was no rate increase, but this year we are recommending adopting a 3% 
increase- going from $242 to $250 Quarterly Sewer Access Charge. Secondly, a Planning & 
Escrow Fees increase. These rates have been increasing year over year, but we have not raised 
these fees in about 7 years. We’re recognizing the cost for processing various applications has 
increased as well as having more complicated applications including required wetland processes, 
etc., and trying to be transparent with fees being charged in the cost of the process. Rather than 
outright increasing the fee, increasing the hard fee (non-refundable) and decreasing the escrow. 
instead of overall fee. Applicants would still write the same amount of check, but we’re trying to 
tell them that it’s likely they’ll only receive $500 back on a typical standard application rather 
than $750 back. We did that with both of those. We seem ok with the total coverage, but we’ve 
been dipping more into escrow fee more and more in application, so we’re recommending a 
modest change in that. There was really nothing else we saw in the Fee Schedule. Same fees for 
MetCouncil’s SAC, City’s SAC, and other general things like the Building Rental fees stayed the 
same. We are reviewing the Building Permit Fee Schedule separately that is not adopted and 
have been operating with a 1997 State Fee Schedule.   
 
Planning fees are still $2,500. What we do differently, we charge a standard fee upfront. A lot of 
other cities charge certain fees ($500, $750, $1,000) and 100% of consulting time is billed 
separately. The problem is that you get to the end of the project, and you have no idea what it 
cost you through the process. You pay the upfront fee and end up getting a bill for $2,500. We 
wrap City fees and base level consulting into project fee, so you know upfront the typical 
application cost. We’ve seen over the last 7 years that the prices have just gone up.   
 

Motion by Johnson, seconded by McCoy to approve RESOLUTION 23-0117-03. Ayes: Johnson, 
McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 

 
 
 
 



 City of Independence           7 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. January 17, 2023 

 

 

11. Hennepin County Broadband Grant Application: Consider Authorization to Apply for Hennepin County 
Grant to Use as a Contributing Source for the MN Border-to-Border Grant Application with Midco 
Broadband to Build Out City.  
 

We were approached by MIDCO to possibly build out a large portion of the City. The MN Border 
to Border DEED program is a statewide grant that comes out in March. Midco asked if we were 
open to partnering on a project to build out broadband. One of Hennepin County’s eligible 
broadband grants includes the use of it to offset the MN Border to Border Grant expenditures. We 
would fill out application by January 31, 2023, without risk or cost other than staff time, and no 
resolution is necessary. Midco is asking for $250,000 for the Hennepin County side which would 
be the City’s contribution to the roughly $3 million buildout of new fiber to home broadband 
services if we were successful for both Hennepin County and the Border-to-Border grant. It would 
increase the number residents served by 434 which is the Western area of the City that we’ve been 
trying to get served. We’d talked to Mediacom for a long time but haven’t come back to get more 
focus. I think it’s a good application and want the Council’s approval.   

 
Motion by Grotting, seconded by Betts to approve application for the Midco Broadband City 
Build Out Grant Application with Hennepin County. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Betts, Spencer, 
and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 

 
 

12. Open/Misc. 
 

Johnson – This is for a resolution that was just handed out and mentioned earlier. The Department 
of Transportation wants to make sure they have support of the communities, organizations, and 
businesses. I’m asking the 4 cities (Loretto, Medina, and Corcoran) to send letters, and since it’s a 
corner of Independence and many of our residents travel that road, we should do this.  This is 
dealing with the Corridors of Commerce and there’s money available for that too. We’re hoping 
that with the legislation Rep. Robbins was talking about earlier tonight that we can get something 
done for the Hwy 55 to Co Rd 19 section. 

 
Motion by Johnson, seconded by Spencer to support Corridors of Commerce Funding Request to 
Resurface Highway 55 from CR 118 to CR 19 with 2-Lane to 4-Lane Expansion.  Ayes: Johnson, 
McCoy, Betts, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 5.0 
 
 
13. Adjourn. 
 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to adjourn the meeting at 7:30 pm. 
 
Meeting adjourned. 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Linda Johnson / Recording Secretary 



Page 1 

 

City of Independence  
2023 LBAE (Local Board of Appeals and Equalization) Meeting  

 
To: City Council 

 
From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
Meeting Date: February 9, 2023 

 

 
Discussion: 
Each year Council is required to approve the date and time for the LBAE Meeting following 
notification from Hennepin County.  The City currently has four (4) Council Members that are fully 
trained and can hold the annual meeting. 

 
 
Council Recommendation: 
Hennepin County has recommended that the City hold its meeting on Tuesday, April 4th at 6:00 
PM.   

 
 
Attachments: Hennepin County Notice of Date/Time 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

City Clerk/City Administrator of Independence 

Laura Majewski 

November 18, 2022

2023 Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Meeting 

Tuesday, April 4, 2023 6:00 PM 

Date Time 

Minnesota Statute 274.01, Subdivision 1, requires that the County Assessor set the date and time for 
your local board of appeal and equalization meeting. We are proposing the date and time referenced 
above.   

Please confirm the above date and time or if you wish to change the date, send me an alternative by 
January 11, 2023. We will try to accommodate the new date, but our staffing needs may not allow it. 
Also, please print or type the name of the local board of appeal and equalization board members
and check the box for the desired meeting format. If you have any questions, please contact me at
Laura.Majewski@hennepin.us. 

Please return this form to AO.Programs@hennepin.us . 

CONFIRMATION 

City: Board Member: 

Date: Board Member: 

Time: Board Member: 

Location: Board Member: 

Board Member: 

Board Member: 

Meeting Format:  In Person Board Member: 

Hybrid 

Remote City Clerk/Administrator Signature 

Steve Grotting

mailto:AO.Programs@hennepin.us


5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 1 
 

City of Independence 
 

Consideration for Final Plat of a Proposed 33 Lot Cluster Development  
to be Known as KOCH FARM SANCTUARY on the Subject Properties  

Generally Located at 5865 Koch’s Crossing  
 

To: City Council  
From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: February 9, 2023 
Applicant: Tom Koch 

Owner: William P Koch Et Al Trustees 
Location: 5865 Koch’s Crossing 

 
Request: 
Tom Koch (Applicant/Owner) is requesting that the City consider the following 
review/discussion for the property generally located at 5865 Koch’s Crossing (PID No’s. 11-
118-24-12-0004, 11-118-24-13-0003, 11-118-24-31-0005, 11-118-24-13-0002, 11-118-24-42-
0001, 11-118-24-42-0002) in Independence, MN: 
 

a. Final Plat to allow a 33-lot subdivision to be known as KOCH FARM 
SANCTUARY.   

 
  
Property/Site Information: 
The overall property is comprised of six (6) individual properties located on the north and south 
sides of Koch’s Crossing between County Road 90 and Independence Road.   The property also 
touches Brei Kessel Road on the south. There is an existing home and a series of detached 
accessory buildings located across several of the properties.  The properties are comprised 
primarily of agriculture land, woodlands and a pond/wetlands.   
 
 

Property Information: 5865 Koch’s Crossing 
 Zoning: Agriculture 
 Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential 

Acreage: ~141 acres  
 
 
 
 
 

 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 2 
 

5865 Koch’s Crossing Aerial 

 
Discussion: 
The City approved the rezoning, conditional use permit, variance and preliminary plat for the 
proposed development in 2022.  The applicant has now submitted an application for final plat of 
the property for a 33-unit subdivision developed across the 6 subject properties.  The City 
reviews the final plat to ensure consistency with the approved preliminary plat.  There were 
several items that were noted during the review of the preliminary plat which have been 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 3 
 

addressed and revised by the applicant. The City provided guidance and feedback during the 
preliminary plat review process and has now completed a comprehensive and detailed review of 
the proposed final plat and associated construction drawings.   
 
Proposed Cluster Subdivision  
The applicant has prepared the final plat based on the cluster development standards.  The 
applicant is proposing to meet all applicable cluster subdivision standards.  The cluster 
subdivision standards are as follows: 
 
Subd. 4. Cluster development conditional use permit. Cluster development is a conditional use in the Rural 

Residential District, subject to the provisions of subsections 520.09, 520.11 and 520.13 of this Code.  

(a) Purpose. The purpose of the cluster development conditional use permit is to promote the creative and 
efficient use of land. The provisions of this subdivision are intended to:  

(1) Protect natural features in common open space.  

(2) Improve the arrangement of structures, facilities and amenities on a site.  

(3) Preserve the rural character of the community.  

(b)     Criteria.  A cluster development is a residential development in which a number of single-family dwelling 
units are grouped on smaller lots than in conventional developments, while the remainder of the tract is 
preserved as open space.  If the following standards are complied with, density of one unit per four acres is 
permitted. 

 
(1) The development parcel must be 40 or more acres in size;  

 
(2) A minimum of 50% of the gross acreage of the subject property, excluding right of way dedicated for 

State, County and Existing City Roads, must be preserved as open space, recreational space or 
agricultural use;  

 
(3) A minimum of 50% of the preserved open space, recreational space or agricultural use land must be 

useable.  Wetlands, streams, lakes, ponds and lands within the 100 year flood plain elevation are not 
considered to be useable for the purpose of this subsection;  

 
(4) Woodland, wetlands and topography must be preserved in a natural state, with modification allowed 

when no reasonable alternative exists; or, if the site lacks unique features such as woodlands and 
wetlands, the site must be designed and constructed in such a manner that residential building sites are 
integrated into a created natural environment including reforestation, wetlands enhancement, and 
vegetative screening of structures; 

 
(5) The preliminary plat must show a primary and secondary individual sewage treatment site for each 

dwelling unit and must be supported with soil test reports indicating the adequacy of each proposed 
location; provided, that shared treatment systems within a development may be acceptable if the 
plat identifies two or more suitable sites for the shared system and the city council approves the 
proposal;  

 
(6) Lots within the development must have a minimum lot size of 1.5 contiguous buildable acres.  Buildable 

acreage must not be separated by streams, wetlands, or other physical impediments; 
 

(7) Lots within the development must have a minimum of 150 feet of frontage on an improved public road 
or street, except lots fronting on the terminus of a cul-de-sac shall have no less than 50 feet of 
frontage. 

 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 4 
 

(8) Open space must be designated in the development as one or more outlots and must be owned either by 
a homeowners’ association consisting of the owners of all of the residential lots in the development or 
by the owners of the residential lots, as tenants in common; 

 
(9) The developer must record against the development a declaration of covenants that places responsibility 

for management of the open space in a homeowners association and provides for the assessment of 
management costs to the association members and memorialized in an agreement with the City; 

 
(10) All utilities must be placed underground;  

 
(11) All residential streets within the cluster development must be paved with a bituminous surface according 

to the city street standards in effect at the time of the development;  
 

(12) A development agreement must be entered into with the city. 
 
Lots Permitted Based on Cluster Subdivision  
  
Total Area: 141.35 acres 
  138.75 net acres (subtracting CSAH 90 right of way) 
  138.75 x 50%:  69.40 acres of open space required  
     69.40 acres of open space provided 
  50% of 69.40 acres: 34.70 acres of useable open space required 
     40.60 acres of useable open space provided 
  33 Lots Proposed 
 
Based on the cluster development standards, the applicant is proposing to develop the property in 
accordance with applicable provisions with several noted exceptions and or issues. 
 
The City has completed a detailed review of the proposed subdivision as follows: 
 

1. The proposed plan proposes to realign Koch’s Crossing at the point of intersection with 
CSAH 90. The realignment of Koch’s Crossing likely aids the sight lines at the CSAH 
90/Koch’s Crossing intersection.  Hennepin County has approved the relocation of 
Koch’s Crossing and associated turn lane plans.  The County is requiring a northbound 
turn lane from CSAH 90 to Koch’s Crossing.  This turn lane combined with the relocated 
intersection should help to mitigate traffic impacts associated with the proposed 
development.   

 
2. Koch’s Crossing will be fully upgraded to the City’s improved street standards and will 

tie into the eastern half that was recently upgraded as a part of the Serenity Hills 
subdivision.   

 
3. The City had asked the developer to provide for a future right of way connection to the 

west to accommodate a future road connection.  The proposed final plat accommodates a 
future right of way that would allow a street connection to the west between Lot 1, Block 
10 and Lot 3, Block 11.  The applicant is not proposing to construct a stub street at this 
time. 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 5 
 

 

 
4. The City requested that the applicant provide additional right of way around the 

perimeter bulb of the existing Brei Kessel cul-de-sac.  The additional right of way would 
allow the bulb to be constructed to the City’s standard at some point in the future.  The 
applicant is dedicating an easement that will allow the expansion.  
 

 
 

5. The City requested that the applicant provide a paved trail connection between the cul-
de-sac bulb on Brei Kessel and the cul-de-sac bulb proposed on William Way.  The 
applicant is proposing to construct a new bituminous trail connection between the 
existing and proposed developments.    



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 6 
 

 

 
 

 
6. The City noted the existence of an existing RIM (reinvest in Minnesota) easement. The 

applicant has removed the existing RIM easement from the private lots as recommended. 
 

7. The applicant has provided information verifying each lot can accommodate a primary 
and secondary septic site. 

 
8. The applicant shows all applicable building setbacks on each proposed lot along with a 

proposed house pad.  Applicable setbacks are as follows: 
 

• Front Yard Setback: 85’ from centerline of road 
• Corner Yard Setback: 52’ from property line 
• Side Yard Setback: 30’ from property line 
• Rear Yard Setback: 40’ from property line 
• Wetland Setback: 10’ from edge of wetland buffer 

 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 7 
 

9. The applicant is proposing to preserve existing trees located within the proposed open 
space/Outlots.   
 

10. The City requires that the applicant provide a planting and maintenance plan for the 
Outlot areas to be maintained by the HOA.  The applicant has provided the City with a 
disturbed upland buffer planting and maintenance plan.   
 

11. The applicant is proposing to place a conservation easement over and across Outlot D.  
This will provide an additional layer of protection and preservation of the pond and 
woodlands. 
 

12. The proposed final plat is not proposed to be phased and all public improvements will be 
constructed at the same time.  Developing the public improvements at one time should 
help mitigate the impacts of construction on the surrounding properties.  

 
13. The existing portion of Koch’s Crossing that is proposed to be eliminated will be 

formally vacated at the same time as Council consideration of the final plat.  The 
applicant has filed a petition to the City seeking vacation of a portion of Koch’s Crossing.  
Vacation of the portion of Koch’s Crossing will be subject to the dedication and 
construction of the new right of way and associated street. 
 

14. The City’s water resource engineers have completed a detailed review of the proposed 
plans noted in the review letter dated January 3, 2023, by Hakanson Anderson.  The 
applicant will be required to revise the plans in accordance with all applicable comments. 
 

15. Applicant will be required to secure all applicable approvals from Pioneer Sarah Creek 
Watershed. 
 

16. It is noted that a Wetland Replacement plan will be required for the wetland impacts that are 
proposed. The Applicant shall submit a Wetland Replacement Plan for review and approval.  

 
17. The City’s engineering consultant has reviewed the plans and prepared a detailed review 

of the final plat as noted in the letter dated January 3, 2023, by Bolton & Menk.  The 
applicant will be required to make all applicable revisions to the plans based on the 
comments provided. 

 
18. The proposed subdivision is subject to the City’s Park dedication requirements.  The City 

is not requesting any public park land within the development.  It is anticipated that the 
proposed useable open space would be fully accessible to the development and there 
appears to be good connectivity to all of the proposed Outlots.  The standard park 
dedication requirement of $3,500 per lot will be applicable to all newly developed lots.  
The City has agreed to credit the development for the six (6) existing parcels (this would 
reduce the total from 33 to 27 lots).  The total park dedication for this property will be 
$94,500.00 (27 lots x $3,500 per lot). 

 
 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 8 
 

Planning Commission Discussion and Recommendation: 
Commissioners reviewed the request and asked questions of staff and the applicant.  
Commissioners noted that the additional easement to make Brie Kessel a standard size cul-de-sac 
is addressed but asked why a full cul-de-sac is not a part of this agreement.  It was noted that the 
City would have to initiate reconstruction of the cul-de-sac.  Commissioners asked if there were 
any public safety issues related to the proposed width of the trail connecting the two cul-de-sacs.  
Staff noted that the trail would be 8.5 feet and accommodate bicycles and pedestrian traffic only.  
Commissioners asked if the trail would be maintained in the winter, and it was noted that the trail 
would likely be considered for winter maintenance depending on usage.  Commissioners noted 
the stub to the west and asked how this would not become a second Brie Kessel.  Staff noted the 
comment and stated that preservation of the right of way for a future connection was in keeping 
with the City’s policy and it would be a Council decision at some point in the future.  
Commissioners found that the proposed final plat was consistent with the preliminary plat and 
that the conditions required at preliminary plat had been satisfied by the applicant.  
Commissioners recommended approval of the final plat with the findings and conditions 
contained herein. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Final Plat with the findings and conditions 
stated below.  The City Council is also being asked to approve the development agreement which further 
details all aspects of the final plat approval. 
 

1. The proposed Final Plat meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated Chapter V, 
Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. City Council approval of the Final Plat will be subject to the following: 
 

a. The Applicant shall make all revisions required and as noted within this report, by the 
Planning Commission and City Council.  

 
b. The Applicant shall address all comments and applicable requirements pertaining to 

the water resources and engineering as outlined in the associated review letters from 
Hakanson Anderson Associates and Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

 
c. The Applicant shall make all recommended and required revisions and receive final 

approval for all proposed and regulated improvements from Hennepin County. 
 

d. The Applicant shall comply with all applicable regulations and conditions prescribed 
by Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission.  

 
e. The Applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City for this 

development. 
 

f. The Applicant shall provide a letter of credit as established by the development 
agreement for all public improvements associated with this development. 



5865 Koch’s Crossing – Final Plat Review  
 Page 9 
 

 
g. The Applicant shall provide the City with copies of the HOA agreement and 

covenants, including information related to the maintenance of the common driveway. 
 

h. The Applicant shall obtain all necessary City, County, PCA and other regulatory 
agency approval and permits prior to construction. 

 
i. The Applicant shall pay the park dedication fees in accordance with the terms defined 

in the Development Agreement. The Applicant shall consent to the establishment of 
the storm sewer improvement tax district. 
 

j. The Applicant shall enter into a storm water maintenance agreement pertaining to the 
required storm water ponds to be located on the property. 

 
k. The Applicant shall submit a Wetland Replacement Plan for review and approval 

 
l. The Applicant shall provide prospective buyers with the Letter of Information 

Pertaining to the subdivision as prepared by the City. 
 

m. Koch’s Crossing will need to be vacated by the City.  Vacation of the right of way will 
need to correspond with the establishment and construction of the new right of way 
and road. 

 
3. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the final plat and 

preparation of the Development Agreement. 
 

4.  If the final plat is approved by the city council, the subdivider shall record it with the 
county recorder within 90 days after the date of approval; otherwise, the approval of the 
final plat shall be considered void. 

 
 

Attachments: 
1. RESOLUTION No. 23-0209-02 
2. Development Agreement 
3. Application 
4. Final Plat 
5. Construction Plans 
6. Vacation Exhibits 
7. Buffer Planting and Maintenance Plan 
8. Detailed Engineering Review Letters 

         

 
 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE  

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-0209-01 

 
A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT AND DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT TO ALLOW A 33-LOT CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT 
TO BE KNOWN AS KOCH FARM SANCTUARY  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, Tom Koch (the “Applicant”) and William P Koch Et Al Trustees (the “Owner”) has 
submitted a request for a Final Plat to allow a 33-lot cluster development of the property 
identified by (PID No.s 11-118-24-12-0004, 11-118-24-13-0003, 11-118-24-31-0005, 11-118-
24-13-0002, 11-118-24-42-0001, 11-118-24-42-0002) (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Final Plat is further depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned RR-Rural Residential; and 

WHEREAS the requested Final Plat meets all requirements, standards and specifications 
of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Rural Residential lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission reviewed the Final Plat on January 17, 2023, to 
review the application for Final Plat, as required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval; and  



 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 
Tom Koch for Final Plat and Development Agreement to allow the proposed subdivision of the 
property per the City’s subdivision regulations with the following conditions: 

 
1. The proposed Final Plat meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated 

Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. City Council approval of the Final Plat will be subject to the following: 
 

a. The Applicant shall make all revisions required and as noted within this report, by 
the Planning Commission and City Council.  

 
b. The Applicant shall address all comments and applicable requirements pertaining 

to the water resources and engineering as outlined in the associated review letters 
from Hakanson Anderson Associates and Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

 
c. The Applicant shall make all recommended and required revisions and receive 

final approval for all proposed and regulated improvements from Hennepin 
County. 

 
d. The Applicant shall comply with all applicable regulations and conditions 

prescribed by Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission.  
 

e. The Applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City for this 
development. 

 
f. The Applicant shall provide a letter of credit as established by the development 

agreement for all public improvements associated with this development. 
 

g. The Applicant shall provide the City with copies of the HOA agreement and 
covenants, including information related to the maintenance of the common 
driveway. 

 
h. The Applicant shall obtain all necessary City, County, PCA and other regulatory 

agency approval and permits prior to construction. 
 

i. The Applicant shall convey all requisite drainage and utility easements and 
conservation easements as depicted on the final plat and associated easement 
exhibits. 

 
j. The Applicant shall pay the park dedication fees in accordance with the terms 

defined in the Development Agreement.  
 

k. The Applicant shall enter into a storm water maintenance agreement pertaining to 
the required storm water ponds to be located on the property. 

 
l. The Applicant shall submit a Wetland Replacement Plan for review and approval 



 

 
m. The Applicant shall provide prospective buyers with the Letter of Information 

Pertaining to the subdivision as prepared by the City. 
 

n. Koch’s Crossing shall be vacated by the City.  Vacation of the right of way will 
need to correspond with the establishment and construction of the new right of 
way and road. 

 
3. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the final plat 

and preparation of the Development Agreement. 
 

4.  If the final plat is approved by the city council, the subdivider shall record it with 
the county recorder within 90 days after the date of approval; otherwise, the 
approval of the final plat shall be considered void. 

 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
day 9th of February 2023, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

        

  

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 

EXHIBIT B 
(Final Plat) 



 

 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR  

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY  
 
This Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this ___ day of 
________, 2023, by and between the city of Independence, a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota (the “City”), and Timothy O. Koch Revocable Living Trust dated October 24, 
2013, and Thomas W. Koch Trust dated May 24, 2021 (together, the “Developer”). 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
  

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the final plat of Koch Farm Sanctuary (the 
“Subdivision”) by Resolution                                     adopted on                                     , 2023 
(“City Approvals”), and; 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer is the fee owner of the land platted as Koch Farm Sanctuary as 
legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”), and; 
  

WHEREAS, the City Approvals are contingent upon the Developer entering into a 
development agreement satisfactory to the City, which development agreement will be recorded 
against the Property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based on the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Right to Proceed.  This Agreement is intended to regulate the development of the 
Property and the construction therein of certain public and private improvements.  The Developer 
may not construct public or private improvements or any buildings within the Subdivision until all 
the following conditions precedent have been satisfied: 
 

a) the final plat has been filed with Hennepin County;  
b) this Agreement has been executed by the Developer and the City and filed 

with Hennepin County; 
c) the required Letter of Credit and escrow amount (as hereinafter defined) 

have been received by the City from the Developer;  
d) final engineering and construction plans in digital form have been 

submitted by the Developer and approved by the city engineer; 
e) the Developer has paid the City for all legal, engineering and 

administrative expenses incurred by the City regarding the City Approvals; 
f) the Developer has responded to all comments from                             (city 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 2 

engineer, county, etc?) and such responses have been approved in writing 
by the city administrator;  

g) the Developer has obtained written approval from the Pioneer Lake Sarah 
Watershed Management Organization and provided evidence of such 
approval to the City; 

h) the Developer has paid the park dedication fee as per paragraph 8 herein, 
and;  

i) the Developer’s agent has attended a preconstruction meeting with the City 
engineer and staff. 

 
Upon completion or satisfaction of the foregoing conditions precedent, the Developer shall notify 
the City and, upon confirmation of completion, the City shall provide written notice that the 
Developer may proceed. 
 

2. Plans; Improvements.  a) The Developer agrees to develop the Property in 
accordance with the City Approvals, and to construct all improvements in accordance with the 
approved engineering and construction plans (collectively, the “Plans”).  All terms and conditions of 
the City Approvals are hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement.  The Plans may not be 
modified by the Developer without the prior written approval of the City. 
 
 b) In developing the Subdivision in accordance with the Plans, the Developer shall 
make or install at its sole expense the following public and private improvements (collectively, the 
“Subdivision Improvements”):   
 

1. Street and road improvements; 
2. Storm sewer facilities, and; 
3. Stormwater pond facilities and associated grading. 

 
 c) All work performed by or on behalf of the Developer related to construction of the 
Subdivision Improvements shall be restricted to the hours of 7:00 a.m. through 6:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, and 8:00 a.m. through 4:00 p.m. on Saturday.  Construction on homes shall be 
restricted to the hours of 7:00 a.m. through 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. 
through 4:00 p.m. on Saturday and Sunday.  
 

3. Erosion Control.  a)  All construction regarding the Subdivision Improvements 
shall be conducted in a manner designed to control erosion and in compliance with all City 
ordinances and other requirements, including the City’s permit with the Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency regarding municipal separate storm sewer system program dated June 30, 2014.  
Before any portion of the Subdivision is rough graded, an erosion control plan shall be 
implemented by the Developer as approved by the City.  The City may impose reasonable, 
additional erosion control requirements after the City’s initial approval, if the City deems such 
necessary due to a change in conditions.  All areas disturbed by the excavation shall be reseeded 
promptly after the completion of the work in that area unless construction of streets or utilities, 
buildings or other improvements is anticipated immediately thereafter.  Except as otherwise 
provided in the erosion control plan, seed shall provide a temporary ground cover as rapidly as 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 3 

possible.  All seeded areas shall be mulched, and disc anchored as necessary for seed retention.  
The parties recognize that time is of the essence in controlling erosion.   
 

b) If the Developer does not comply with the erosion control plan and schedule or 
supplementary instructions received from the City, the City may take such action as it deems 
reasonably appropriate to control erosion based on the urgency of the situation.  The City agrees 
to provide reasonable notice to the Developer in advance of any proposed action, including 
notice by telephone or email in the case of emergencies, but limited notice by the City when 
conditions so dictate will not affect the Developer’s obligations or the City’s rights hereunder.   

 
c) The Developer agrees to reimburse the City for all expenses it incurs in 

connection with any action it takes to control erosion.  No grading or construction of the 
Subdivision Improvements will be allowed and no building permits will be issued within the 
Subdivision unless the Developer is in full compliance with the erosion control requirements.  
The erosion control measures specified in the Plans or otherwise required within the Subdivision 
shall be binding on the Developer and its successors and assigns. 
 

4. Site Grading; Haul Routes.  a) In order to construct the Subdivision 
Improvements and otherwise prepare the Property for development, it will be necessary for the 
Developer to grade the Property.  All grading must be done in compliance with this Agreement, 
the Plans and with all requirements of the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency regarding 
contaminated soils.  The City may withhold issuance of a building permit for the Subdivision 
until the approved certified grading plan is on file with the City and all erosion control measures 
are in place as determined by the City.  Within 30 days after completion of the grading, the 
Developer shall provide the City with an “as constructed” grading plan and a certification by a 
registered land surveyor or engineer. 
 

b) The Developer agrees that any fill material which must be brought to or removed 
from the Subdivision while grading the site or during construction of the Subdivision 
Improvements or any buildings located within the Subdivision will be transported using the haul 
routes established by the City.  
 

5. Construction of Subdivision Improvements.  a)  All Subdivision Improvements 
shall be installed in accordance with the Plans, the City Approvals, the City’s subdivision 
regulations, the City’s engineering standards and the requirements of the City engineer.  The 
Developer shall submit plans and specifications for the Subdivision Improvements.  The 
Developer shall obtain any necessary permits from any other agency having jurisdiction before 
proceeding with construction.  The City shall inspect the Subdivision Improvements at the 
Developer’s expense.  The Developer, its contractors and subcontractors, shall follow all 
instructions received from the City’s inspectors.  Within 45 days after the completion of the 
Subdivision Improvements, the Developer shall supply the City with a complete set of 
reproducible “as constructed” plans and three complete sets of paper “as constructed” plans, each 
prepared in accordance with City standards and also electronic versions of said plans in 
AutoCAD and shapefile formats based on Hennepin County coordinates.  Iron monuments must 
be installed in accordance with state law.  The Developer’s surveyor shall submit a written notice 
to the City certifying that the monuments have been installed.  All Subdivision Improvements 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 4 

required by this Agreement shall be completed by no later than December 31, 2024, except as 
specifically noted otherwise in this Agreement.   
 

b) The Developer agrees to require its contractor to provide to the City a warranty 
bond against defects in labor and materials for all elements of the Subdivision Improvements for 
a period of two years from the date of their acceptance by the City.  During such period, the 
Developer agrees to repair or replace any Subdivision Improvement, or any portion or element 
thereof, which shows signs of failure, normal wear and tear excepted.  A decision regarding 
whether a Subdivision Improvement shows signs of failure shall be made by the City in the 
exercise of its reasonable judgment.  If the Developer fails to repair or replace a defective 
Subdivision Improvement during the warranty period, the City may repair or replace the 
defective portion and may use the Letter of Credit (as hereinafter defined) to reimburse itself for 
such costs.  The Developer agrees to reimburse the City fully for the cost of all Subdivision 
Improvement repair or replacement if the cost thereof exceeds the remaining amount of the 
Letter of Credit.  Such reimbursement must be made within 45 days of the date upon which the 
City notifies the Developer of the cost due under this paragraph.  The Developer hereby agrees to 
permit the City to specially assess any unreimbursed costs against any lots in the Subdivision 
which have not been sold to home buyers if the Developer fails to make required payments to the 
City.  The Developer, on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, acknowledges the benefit 
to the lots within the Subdivision of the repair or replacement of the Subdivision Improvements 
and hereby consents to such assessment and waives the right to a hearing or notice of hearing or 
any appeal thereon under Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429. 
 

c) If building permits are issued prior to the completion and acceptance of all 
Subdivision Improvements serving any lot, the Developer assumes all liability and costs 
resulting in delays in completion of the Subdivision Improvements and damage to the 
Subdivision Improvements caused by the City, the Developer, its contractors, subcontractors, 
materialmen, employees, agents, or third parties. 

 
6. Stormwater Pond Improvements.  a)  The Developer agrees to complete all 

elements of the on-site stormwater facilities, including but not limited to ponds, infiltration 
basins and accompanying structures, in accordance with the Plans and in compliance with all 
City requirements regarding such improvements. The stormwater facilities serving the Subdivision 
will remain private and will be maintained by the Developer, or successor owners, at its sole 
expense.  The City does not intend to accept the stormwater facilities as public and does not intend 
to maintain them.  In order to meet the requirements of the Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed 
Management Organization, the Developer agrees to enter into a Stormwater Pond Maintenance 
Agreement with the City in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.  The purpose of the Stormwater 
Pond Maintenance Agreement is to ensure that the Developer and ultimately the homeowners 
association maintain the stormwater facilities within the Subdivision and to give the City the right 
but not the obligation to do so if the Developer fails in its obligations.  The Stormwater Pond 
Maintenance Agreement will be recorded against the Property and will run with the land.  The 
Developer acknowledges that i) the on-site storm water improvements will not be accepted by 
the City; ii) the City does not plan to maintain or pay for maintenance, repair or replacement of 
the storm sewer improvements and that the Developer and ultimately the lot owners will have 
primary responsibility for such work; iii)  the City has the right but not the obligation to perform 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 5 

necessary work upon the failure or refusal by the Developer or the lot owners to do so; and iv) if 
the City performs any work on the storm water improvements, the City intends to recover its 
costs through one of the means available to it, including the right to specially assess the cost of 
such work against all of the lots within the Subdivision. 
 

b) The Developer agrees to inform purchasers of lots within the Subdivision that i) 
the City does not plan to maintain or pay for maintenance, repair or replacement of the storm 
water improvements and that the lot owners will have primarily responsibility for such work; ii)  
the City has the right but not the obligation to perform necessary work upon the failure or refusal 
by the lot owners to do so; and iii) if the City performs any work on the storm water 
improvements, the City intends to recover the cost of such work against the lots within the 
Subdivision through one of the means available to it, including the right to specially assess the 
cost of the work against all the lots within the Subdivision. 
 

7. Improvement Security.  a)  In order to ensure completion of the Subdivision 
Improvements required under this Agreement and satisfaction of all fees due to the City, the 
Developer agrees to deliver to the City prior to beginning any construction or work within the 
Subdivision a letter of credit (the “Letter of Credit”) in the amount of $                            .00, 
which represents 150 percent of the estimated cost of the Subdivision Improvements as specified 
in the Plans.  This amount represents the maximum risk exposure for the City, based on the 
anticipated sequence of construction and the estimate of cost of each element of the Subdivision 
Improvements, rather than the aggregate cost of all required Subdivision Improvements.  The 
Letter of Credit shall be delivered to the City prior to beginning any work on the Subdivision 
Improvements and shall renew automatically thereafter until released by the City.  The estimated 
cost of the work covered by the Letter of Credit is itemized on Exhibit B attached hereto.  The 
Letter of Credit shall be issued by a bank determined by the City to be solvent and creditworthy 
and shall be in a form acceptable to the City.  The Letter of Credit shall allow the City to draw 
upon the instrument, in whole or part, in order to complete construction of any or all of the 
Subdivision Improvements and other specified work within the Subdivision and to pay any fees 
or costs due to the City by the Developer.   
 

b) The City agrees to return a portion of the Letter of Credit, in an amount to be 
determined solely by the City, upon substantial completion of any significant portion of the 
covered Subdivision Improvements, delivery of the required warranty bond to the City, and 
satisfaction of all of the Developer’s financial obligations to the City.  The Letter of Credit may 
also be used as security for additional elements of the Subdivision Improvements.  Prior to 
releasing any portion of the Letter of Credit, the City shall first be satisfied regarding the quality 
and completeness of the work and that the Developer has taken such steps as may be necessary 
to ensure that no liens will attach to the land within the Subdivision.  The remaining balance of 
the Letter of Credit shall be released in full and returned to the Developer following installation 
of the final wear course of bituminous on the streets and after satisfaction of all the Developer’s 
financial obligations to the City under this Agreement.  

 
c) It is the intention of the parties that the City at all times have available to it an 

Letter of Credit in an amount adequate to ensure completion of all elements of the Subdivision 
Improvements and other obligations of the Developer under this Agreement, including fees or 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 6 

costs due to the City by the Developer.  To that end and notwithstanding anything herein to the 
contrary, all requests by the Developer for a reduction or release of the Letter of Credit shall be 
evaluated by the City in light of that principle. 
 

8. Park Dedication Requirements.  The Developer shall pay a cash-in-lieu park 
dedication fee of Ninety-four Thousand, Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($94,500.00) for the 
Subdivision. 

 
9. [Intentionally Omitted]. 
 
10. Responsibility for Costs; Deposit for Construction Inspection.  a) The Developer 

agrees to pay to the City an administrative fee in the amount necessary to reimburse the City for 
its reasonable costs and expenses in reviewing the final plat and the drafting and negotiation of this 
Agreement.  The Developer agrees to reimburse the City in full for such reasonable costs within 45 
days after notice in writing by the City.  The Developer agrees to reimburse the City for the 
reasonable cost incurred in the enforcement of any provision of this Agreement, including 
reasonable engineering and attorneys’ fees.   
 

b) The Developer shall also pay a fee for City construction observation and 
administration relating to construction of the Subdivision Improvements.  Construction 
observation shall include inspection of all the Subdivision Improvements. In order to reimburse 
the City for the administrative fee and the reasonable cost of inspection of the Subdivision 
Improvements, the Developer shall deposit an additional $10,000.00 with the City, which shall 
receive and hold such funds solely under the terms of this Agreement.  The City shall reimburse 
itself for expenses from the deposit and will provide the Developer with a copy of any invoice 
from the City engineer or evidence of other cost or expense prior to deducting such funds from 
the deposit.  If any funds held exceed the amount necessary to reimburse the City for its costs 
under this paragraph, such funds shall be returned to Developer without interest.  If it appears 
that the actual costs incurred will exceed the estimate, Developer and City shall review the costs 
required to complete the project and the Developer shall deposit additional sums with the City. 
 

11. Developer’s Default.  In the event of default by the Developer as to construction or 
repair of any of the Subdivision Improvements or any other work or undertaking required by this 
Agreement, the City may, at its option, perform the work and the Developer shall promptly 
reimburse the City for any expense incurred by the City.  This Agreement is a license for the 
City to act, and it shall not be necessary for the City to seek an order from any court for 
permission to enter the Subdivision for such purposes.  If the City does any such work, the City 
may, in addition to its other remedies, levy special assessments against the land within the 
Subdivision to recover the costs thereof.  For this purpose, the Developer, for itself and its 
successors and assigns, expressly waives any and all procedural and substantive objections to the 
special assessments, including but not limited to, hearing requirements and any claim that the 
assessments exceed the benefit to the land so assessed.  The Developer, for itself and its 
successors and assigns, also waives any appeal rights otherwise available pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes, section 429.081. 
 

12. Insurance.  The Developer agrees to take out and maintain or cause to be taken 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 7 

out and maintained until six months after the City has accepted the Subdivision Improvements, 
public liability and property damage insurance covering personal injury, including death, and 
claims for property damage which may arise out of Developer’s work or the work of its 
contractors or subcontractors.  Liability limits shall not be less than $500,000 when the claim is 
one for death by wrongful act or omission or for any other claim and $1,500,000 for any number 
of claims arising out of a single occurrence.  The City shall be named as an additional insured on 
the policy.  The certificate of insurance shall provide that the City must be given the same 
advance written notice of the cancellation of the insurance as is afforded to the Developer. 
 

13. Floodplain Regulations.  No structures, including fences and accessory structures, 
may be constructed within the Subdivision below the regulatory flood protection elevation.  The 
Developer must comply with the requirements of the City with regard to flood protection.   
 

14. No Building Permits Approved, Certificates of Occupancy.  a)  The City 
Approvals do not include approval of a building permit for any structures within the Subdivision.  
The Developer must submit, and the City must approve building plans prior to an application for 
a building permit for a structure on any lot within the Subdivision.  The Developer or the parties 
applying for the building permits shall be responsible for payment of the customary fees 
associated with the building permits and other deferred fees as specified in this Agreement. 
 

b) No certificate of occupancy shall be issued for any home constructed in the 
Subdivision unless prior thereto the lot has been graded, the driveway has been installed, the 
home is connected to the municipal sanitary sewer system and such connection has been 
approved by the City, and an as built survey of the lot has been submitted and approved by the 
City.  In cases in which seasonal weather conditions make compliance with these conditions 
impossible, the City may accept an escrow of sufficient amount to ensure completion of the work 
during the following construction season. 
 

15. Clean up and Dust Control.  The Developer shall daily clean dirt and debris from 
streets adjoining the Subdivision resulting from construction work by the Developer, its 
contractors, agents or assigns.  The Developer shall provide dust control to the satisfaction of the 
City’s engineer throughout construction within the Subdivision. 
 

16. Compliance with Laws.  The Developer agrees to comply with all laws, ordinances, 
regulations and directives of the state of Minnesota and the City applicable to the Subdivision.  This 
Agreement shall be construed according to the laws of Minnesota.  Breach of the terms of this 
Agreement by the Developer shall be grounds for denial of building permits for the Subdivision. 
 

17. Agreement Runs with the Land.  This Agreement shall run with the Property and 
shall be recorded against the title thereto and shall bind and inure to the benefit of the City and 
the Developer and their successors and assigns.  The Developer’s successor in title may be 
responsible for obligations under this Agreement as required by the City.  The Developer 
warrants that there are no unrecorded encumbrances or interests relating to the Property.  The 
Developer agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless for any breach of the foregoing 
covenants.   
 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 8 

18. Indemnification.  The Developer hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the City and 
its officers, employees, and agents harmless from claims made by it and third parties for 
damages sustained or costs incurred resulting from approval of the final plat and the other City 
Approvals.  The Developer hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the City and its officers, 
employees, and agents harmless for all costs, damages, or expenses which the City may pay or 
incur in consequence of such claims, including attorneys’ fees, except matters involving acts of 
gross negligence by the City.   
 

19. Assignment.  The Developer may not assign this Agreement or its rights or 
obligations hereunder without the prior written permission of the City, which consent shall not 
be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or denied.   
 

20. Notices.  Any notice or correspondence to be given under this Agreement shall be 
deemed to be given if delivered personally or sent by United States certified or registered mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested: 
 

a)  as to Developer:  Timothy O. Koch Revocable Living Trust dated 
October 24, 2013 

  __________________________________ 
  __________________________________ 
 
       

 b) as to City:   City of Independence 
      1920 County Road 90 
      Independence, MN 55359-9448 

Attn:  City Administrator 
 

with a copy to:   Robert Vose 
      Kennedy & Graven, Chartered 
      150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 
      Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 
or at such other address as any party may from time to time notify the others in writing in 
accordance with this paragraph.  The Developer shall notify the City if there is any change in its 
name or address. 
 

21. Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, 
illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall pertain only to 
such section and shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement. 
 

22. Non-waiver.  Each right, power or remedy conferred upon the City by this 
Agreement is cumulative and in addition to every other right, power or remedy, express or 
implied, now or hereafter arising, or available to the City at law or in equity, or under any other 
agreement.  Each and every right, power and remedy herein set forth or otherwise so existing 
may be exercised from time to time as often and in such order as may be deemed expedient by 
the City and shall not be a waiver of the right to exercise at any time thereafter any other right, 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 9 

power or remedy.  If either party waives in writing any default or nonperformance by the other 
party, such waiver shall be deemed to apply only to such event and shall not waive any other prior 
or subsequent default. 
 

23. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 
 
 

[Signature pages to follow] 
 
 
 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 10 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on 
the day and year first above written. 
 
       CITY OF INDEPENDENCE  

 
      By: __________________________________ 

       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
 

      By: __________________________________ 
       Mark Kaltsas 

       City Administrator 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ________, 2023, by 
Marvin Johnson and Mark Kaltsas, the Mayor and City Administrator, respectively, of the city of 
Independence, a Minnesota municipal corporation, on behalf of the municipal corporation. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public 

 
 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 11 

 
Developer  
Timothy O. Koch Revocable Living Trust dated 
October 24, 2013 
 
__________________________________ 

      Trustee 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________, 2023, 
by                                       , the                                    for                        . on behalf of the Trust. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public  
 
 
 

Developer  
Thomas W. Koch Trust dated May 24, 2021 

 
 

__________________________________ 
      Trustee 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________, 2023, 
by                                       , the                                    for                        . on behalf of the Trust. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public  
 
 
This instrument drafted by: 
 
Kennedy & Graven, Chartered (RJV) 
150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 



A-1 
DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 

EXHIBIT A  
TO 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Legal Description of the Property 
 
The land subject to this Development Agreement is located in Hennepin County, Minnesota and is 
legally described as follows: 
 

Lot 1 Block 1; Lots 1 and 2, Block 2; Lot 1, Block 3, Lots 1-3, Block 4; Lots 1-5, Block 
5; Lot 1, Block 6; Lots 1-4, Block 7; Lots 1-3, Block 8; Lots 1-5, Block 9; Lots 1-4, 
Block 10; Lots 1-3, Block 11, and; Outlots A, B, C, D, and E, Koch Farm Sanctuary, 
according to the recorded plat thereof.  



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-1 

 
EXHIBIT B 

TO  
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
Subdivision Improvement Cost Estimate  

 
 

[To be inserted] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-2 

EXHIBIT C 
TO  

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Stormwater Pond Maintenance Agreement 
 

FORM OF 
STORMWATER POND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the ____ day of ___________, 
2022, by and between the city of Independence, a Minnesota municipal corporation (the “City”), 
and _________________________, a Minnesota corporation (the “Developer”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer owns certain real property located in Hennepin County, 
Minnesota, legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer has granted to the City drainage and utility easements over 
portions of the Property through dedication on the plat of KOCH FARM SANCTUARY; and 
 
 WHEREAS, those portions of the Property subject to the drainage and utility easements 
are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Easement Areas”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer intends to construct within the Easement Areas certain 
stormwater facilities (the “Stormwater Improvements”) for the benefit of the Property; and  

 
WHEREAS, by a separate development agreement (the “Development Agreement”), the 

City and the Developer have entered into an agreement for the construction and maintenance of 
the Stormwater Improvements; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City requires permanent provisions for handling of storm runoff, 
including terms and conditions for operation and maintenance of all Stormwater Improvements, 
and requires such provisions to be set forth in an agreement to be recorded against the Property; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and the Developer intend to comply with certain conditions, 
including entering into a maintenance agreement regarding the Stormwater Improvements; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants of the parties set forth 
herein and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Maintenance of the Stormwater Improvements.  The Developer and its successors 
or assigns as fee owners of the Property shall be responsible for maintaining the Stormwater 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-3 

Improvements and for observing all drainage laws governing the operation and maintenance of 
the Stormwater Improvements.  The Developer shall provide the City with a schedule acceptable 
to the City for the periodic inspection of the Stormwater Improvements by the Developer.  The 
Developer shall make all such scheduled inspections, keep record of all inspections and 
maintenance activities, and submit such records annually to the City.  The cost of all inspections 
and maintenance, including skimming and cleaning of the Stormwater Improvements, shall be 
the obligation of the Developer and its successors or assigns as the fee owner of the Property.   
 

2. City’s Maintenance Rights.  The City may maintain the Stormwater 
Improvements, as provided in this paragraph, if the City reasonably believes that the Developer 
or its successors or assigns has failed to maintain the Stormwater Improvements in accordance 
with applicable drainage laws and other requirements and such failure continues for 30 days after 
the City gives the Developer written notice of such failure or, if such tasks cannot be completed 
within 30 days, after such time period as may be reasonably required to complete the required 
tasks provided that Developer is making a good faith effort to complete said task.  The City's 
notice shall specifically state which maintenance tasks are to be performed. If Developer does 
not complete the maintenance tasks within the required time period after such notice is given by 
the City, the City shall have the right to enter upon the Easement Area to perform such 
maintenance tasks.  In such case, the City shall send an invoice of its reasonable maintenance 
costs to the Developer or its successors or assigns, which shall include all reasonable staff time, 
engineering and legal and other reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the City.  If the 
Developer or its assigns fails to reimburse the City for its costs and expenses in maintaining the 
Stormwater Improvements within 30 days of receipt of an invoice for such costs, the City shall 
have the right to assess the full cost thereof against the Property.  The Developer, on behalf of 
itself and its successor and assigns, acknowledges that the maintenance work performed by the 
City regarding the Stormwater Improvements benefits the Property in an amount which exceeds 
the assessment and hereby waives any right to hearing or notice and the right to appeal the 
assessments otherwise provided by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, in the event of an emergency, as determined by the city engineer, the 30-day notice 
requirement to the Developer for failure to perform maintenance tasks shall be and hereby is 
waived in its entirety by the Developer, and the Developer shall reimburse the City and be 
subject to assessment for any expense so incurred by the City in the same manner as if written 
notice as described above has been given. 
 

3. Hold Harmless.  The Developer hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the City and its agents and employees against any and all claims, demands, losses, 
damages, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of or resulting from the 
Developer's, or the Developer's agents’ or employees’ negligent or intentional acts, or any 
violation of any safety law, regulation or code in the performance of this Agreement, without 
regard to any inspection or review made or not made by the City, its agents or employees or 
failure by the City, its agents or employees to take any other prudent precautions.  In the event 
the City, upon the failure of the Developer to comply with any conditions of this Agreement, 
performs said conditions pursuant to its authority in this Agreement, the Developer shall 
indemnify and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents and representatives for its own 
negligent acts in the performance of the Developer's required work under this Agreement, but 
this indemnification shall not extend to intentional or grossly negligent acts of the City, its 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-4 

employees, agents and representatives. 
 

4.  Costs of Enforcement.  The Developer agrees to reimburse the City for all costs 
prudently incurred by the City in the enforcement of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, 
including court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

 
5. Rights Not Exclusive.  No right of the City under this Agreement shall be deemed 

to be exclusive and the City shall retain all rights and powers it may have under Minnesota 
Statutes, sections 444.16 to 444.21 to acquire, construct, reconstruct, extend, maintain and 
otherwise improve the Stormwater Improvements, provided, however, that the City shall not 
exercise such rights unless the Developer or its successors or assigns does not timely cure a 
failure to maintain the Stormwater Improvements after receipt of written notice as provided in 
paragraph 2 above. 

 
6.  Notice.  All notices required under this Agreement shall either be personally 

delivered or be sent by United States certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, and addressed 
as follows: 

 
a)  as to Developer:  ________________________ 
     ________________________ 
     ________________________ 
 

 b) as to City:   City of Independence 
      1920 County Road 90 
      Independence, MN  55359-9448 

Attn:  City Administrator 
 
  with a copy to:   Robert Vose 

Kennedy & Graven, Chartered 
      150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 
      Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 
or at such other address as any party may from time to time notify the others in writing in 
accordance with this paragraph. 
 

7.  Successors.  All duties and obligations of Developer under this Agreement shall 
also be duties and obligations of Developer's successors and assigns.  The terms and conditions 
of this Agreement shall run with the Property. 
 

8.  Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be binding and effective as of the date first 
written above. 

 
9. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of Minnesota. 
 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-5 

 
 

Developer 
     ________________________ 
     ________________________ 
     ________________________ 
 
       

 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
__________, 2022, by                                       , the                                    for _______________on 
behalf of the corporation. 
       ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public  



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-6 

 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
 
 

By:         
Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
 
 

By:         
Mark Kaltsas 
City Administrator 

 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
    )  ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________, 
2023, by Marvin Johnson and Mark Kaltsas, the Mayor and the City Administrator, respectively, 
of the city of Independence, a Minnesota municipal corporation, on behalf of the municipal 
corporation. 
 
 
 
             
       Notary Public 
 
 
This instrument drafted by: 
 
Kennedy & Graven, Chartered (RJV) 
150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 
 
 



A-1 
DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 

 
EXHIBIT A TO 

STORMWATER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 
The land subject to this Stormwater Maintenance Agreement is located in Hennepin County, 
Minnesota and is legally described as follows: 
 
 

Lot 1 Block 1; Lots 1 and 2, Block 2; Lot 1, Block 3, Lots 1-3, Block 4; Lots 1-5, Block 
5; Lot 1, Block 6; Lots 1-4, Block 7; Lots 1-3, Block 8; Lots 1-5, Block 9; Lots 1-4, 
Block 10; Lots 1-3, Block 11, and; Outlots A, B, C, D, and E, Koch Farm Sanctuary, 
according to the recorded plat thereof.  



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 C-1 

 
 
 



1

2

3

2

3

4

1 2 3

1

2

3

4OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT A

3

2

1

321

1

8

11

3

O
U

T
L
O

T
  
B

OUTLOT  D

5

4

4

5

1

2

2

1

1

1

6

7

4

1

2

6

5

1

9

3

OUTLOT  E

10

KOCH'S CROSSING

WILLIAM

WAY

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

201 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

COVER SHEETKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet

0 200 400

Vicinity Map

N

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY
INDEPENDENCE, MN

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



KOCHS         CROSSING

WILLIAM       
      W

AY

1

2

3

2

3

4

1 2 3

1

2

3

4
OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT A

3

2

1

321

1

8

10

3

O
U

T
L
O

T
 B

OUTLOT  D

5
4

4

5

1

2

2

1

1

1

6

7

4

1

2

6

5

1

9

3

OUTLOT  E

11

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

202 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

GRADING PLAN (OVERVIEW)

Feet

0 200 400

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



KOCHS                          CROSSING

W
IL

L
IA

M
  

  
  

W
A

Y

C
O

U
N

T
Y

  
  
R

O
A

D
  
  
N

O
. 
  
 9

0

1

2

3

OUTLOT A

3

5

4

1

2

2

1

1

1

2

1

3

O
U

T
L

O
T

 B

OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT  C

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

203

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

GRADING PLAN (NORTH)KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet

0 60 120

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



WILLIAM       
      W

AY

1

2

3

3

4

OUTLOT  C

32

1

1

8

O
U

T
L

O
T

 B

5

4

5

6

7

6

OUTLOT  D

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

204

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

GRADING PLAN

(EAST CENTRAL)

Feet

0 60 120

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



WILLIAM       
      W

AY

1

2

3

1

2

3

2

1

32

1

8

4

1

7

9

11

OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT  D

OUTLOT  D

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

205

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

GRADING PLAN

(WEST CENTRAL)

Feet

0 60 120

10

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



W
IL

L
IA

M
  
  
  
  
 W

A
Y

2

3

4

3

2

10

OUTLOT  D

4

5

9

OUTLOT  E

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

206

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

GRADING PLAN (SOUTH)

Feet

0 60 120

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

207

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

SWPPP - PROJECT INFORMATIONKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

6-3-22

¹  

²  

N

N

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

208

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

6-3-22

STORMWATER POLLUTION

PREVENTION PLAN NARRATIVE

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



KOCHS                          CROSSING

W
IL

L
IA

M
  

  
  

W
A

Y

C
O

U
N

T
Y

  
  
R

O
A

D
  
  
N

O
. 
  
 9

0

1

2

3

OUTLOT A

3

5

4

1

2

2

1

1

1

2

1

3

O
U

T
L

O
T

 B

OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT  C

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

209

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

STORMWATER POLLUTION

PREVENTION PLAN (NORTH)
KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

6-3-22

Feet

0 60 120

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



WILLIAM       
      W

AY

1

2

3

3

4

OUTLOT  C

32

1

1

8

O
U

T
L

O
T

 B

5

4

5

6

7

6

OUTLOT  D

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2010

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

STORMWATER POLLUTION

PREVENTION PLAN (EAST CENTRAL)

6-3-22

Feet

0 60 120

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



WILLIAM       
      W

AY

1

2

3

1

2

3

2

1

32

1

8

4

1

7

9

11

OUTLOT  C

OUTLOT  D

OUTLOT  D

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2011

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

STORMWATER POLLUTION

PREVENTION PLAN (WEST CENTRAL)

10

6-3-22

Feet

0 60 120

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



W
IL

L
IA

M
  
  
  
  
 W

A
Y

2

3

4

3

2

10

OUTLOT  D

4

5

9

OUTLOT  E

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2012

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

STORMWATER POLLUTION

PREVENTION PLAN (SOUTH)

6-3-22

Feet

0 60 120

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



KOCHS CROSSING

1

2

OUTLOT A

3

5

4

1

2

2

1

1
12

1

3

KOCHS          CROSSING

W
IL

L
IA

M
  
  
  
 W

A
Y

OUTLOT A

OUTLOT  C O
U

T
L
O

T
  
B

C
O

U
N

T
Y

  
 R

O
A

D
  
 N

O
. 
  
9
0

O
U

T
L
O

T
 B

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2013 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN

KOCHS CROSSING
KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet

0 50 100

SEE SHEET 16

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



WILLIAM WAY
STA 0+00 TO STA 12+00

BITUMINOUS TRAIL DETAIL

2

3

2

3

4

3

2

1

1

4

5

9

O
U

T
L
O

T
  E

1
0

WILLIAM              WAY

O
U

T
L
O

T
  D

O
U

T
L
O

T
  D

1
1

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2014 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN

WILLIAM WAY

(STA 0+00 TO STA 12+00)

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet

0 50 100

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



 WILLIAM WAY
STA 12+00 TO STA 27+00

1

2

3

1 2 3

O
U

T
L
O

T
  
C

3
2

1
8

OUTLOT  D

4
7

O
U

T
L
O

T
  
C

WILLIAM                   WAY

OUTLOT  D

O
U

T
L
O

T
  
C

11

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2015

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN

WILLIAM WAY

(STA 12+00 TO STA 27+00)

Feet

0 50 100

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



  WILLIAM WAY
STA 27+00 TO STA 39+65

1

2

3

4

OUTLOT  C

1

OUTLOT  B
5

5

6

6

OUTLOT B

OUTLOT  C

K
O

C
H

S
          C

R
O

S
S

IN
G

WILLIAM           
           

          W
AY

OUTLOT  D

O
U

T
L
O

T
  D

1
3

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2016

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY
STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN

WILLIAM WAY

(STA 27+00 TO STA 39+65)

N
Feet

0 50 100

SEE SHEET 13

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



K
O

C
H

'S
  C

R
O

S
S

IN
G

WILLIAM   WAY

W
IL

L
IA

M
          W

A
Y

1

2

3234

1
2

3

1234
O

U
T

L
O

T
  C

O
U

T
L
O

T
 A

3

2

1

3
2

1

1

8

1
1

3

OUTLOT  B

O
U

T
L
O

T
  D

5

4

4

5

1

2

2

1 1

1

6

7

4

1

2

6

5

1

9

3

O
U

T
L
O

T
  E

1
0

KOCH FARM SANCTUARY
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

Feet

0 200 400

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

6-3-22

WETLAND BUFFER & TREE

PRESERVATION PLAN 18-0199

17 20

N

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2018

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

DETAILSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

6-3-22

FLOW

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



OUTLET CONTROL

STRUCTURE  
(POND #1)

OUTLET CONTROL

STRUCTURE  
(POND #2)

OUTLET CONTROL

STRUCTURE  
(POND #6)

OUTLET CONTROL

STRUCTURE  
(POND #5)

OUTLET CONTROL

STRUCTURE  
(POND #7)

OUTLET CONTROL

STRUCTURE  
(POND #9)

OUTLET CONTROL

STRUCTURE  
(POND #8)

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2019

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

DETAILSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



                   GRAVEL DRIVEWAY SECTION

TYPICAL ROAD SECTION

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

2020

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

DETAILSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

TYPICAL FULL BASEMENT

W/LOOKOUT WINDOWS (L/OUT)

TYPICAL FULL WALKOUT (WO)

6-3-22

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



LAKE INDEPENDENCE

EAST SARAH

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

81 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

COVER SHEETKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

HENNEPIN COUNTY

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE
COUNTY ROAD NO. 90 TURN LANE PLAN

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

82 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

TYPICAL SECTION &

CONSTRUCTION NOTES
KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

PROPOSED TYPICAL ROAD SECTION

COUNTY ROAD NO. 90

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



1

K
O

C
H

'S
 C

R
O

S
S

IN
G

COUNTY    ROAD    NO.    90

1
1

4

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

83 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

REMOVAL, EROSION CONTROL, &

TURF ESTABLISHMENT PLAN

COUNTY ROAD NO. 90
KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet

0 20 40

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



1
1

4
1

K
O

C
H

'S
 C

R
O

S
S

IN
G

COUNTY    ROAD    NO.    90

O
U

T
L

O
T

  C SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

84 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

TURN LANE - GRADING PLANKOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet

0 20 40

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



COUNTY ROAD NO. 90

1
1

K
O

C
H

'S
 C

R
O

S
S

IN
G

COUNTY    ROAD    NO.    90

RIGHT  LANE
MUST

TURN  RIGHT

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

85 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

CONSTRUCTION PLAN & PROFILE

COUNTY ROAD NO. 90
KOCH FARM SANCTUARY

N

Feet

0 20 40

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



0+00.00

0+25.00

0+50.00

0+75.00

1+00.00

1+25.00

1+50.00

1+75.00

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

86 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

CROSS SECTIONSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY
I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



2+51.83

2+00.00

2+25.00

2+50.00

2+75.00

3+00.00

3+25.00

3+50.00

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

87 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

CROSS SECTIONSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY
I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:



3+75.00

4+00.00

4+25.00

4+50.00

4+75.00

5+00.00

5+25.00

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

88 6-3-22

18-0199
TOM KOCH

INDEPENDENCE, MN

CROSS SECTIONSKOCH FARM SANCTUARY
I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by
me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Paul E.  Otto
License # 40062                    Date:

























Wetland Buffer Planting and Maintenance Plan 

Koch Farm Sanctuary - Page 1 of 2 

 

Disturbed Upland Buffer Areas 

Planting and Maintenance Plan  

Koch Farm Sanctuary, Independence, MN 
 
 

The Koch Farm Sanctuary development shows disturbed upland buffer requiring planting and 

management according to Pioneer-Sarah Creek WMC. The site previously consisted of farm fields 

encroaching on wetlands; therefore, the quality of buffers is anticipated to increase with development of 

the site and subsequent management of buffers. After construction activities have ceased, upland buffer 

that is disturbed during project grading will be seeded with a native seed mix and managed annually for 

weedy and invasive species. Upon final establishment, wetland buffer shall contain little or no bare soil 

and shall exhibit a dominance of native vegetation. Protocols to be followed for site preparation/seeding 

and maintenance are provided below. 

 
 

Disturbed Upland Buffer Planting Plan 
 

Site Preparation & Seeding (assuming fall seeding) 

Soils within the disturbed buffer areas will first be decompacted to a depth of 12 inches and organic 

matter will be incorporated into soils, and then fine graded/smoothed before the seeding work begins (to 

be done by the general contractor or excavator). The areas will be left/avoided for a minimum of 30 days 

to allow weeds to germinate and regrow. 

 

A broad spectrum herbicide treatment will be applied as per manufacturer’s directions. Herbicide 

treatment areas will be left/avoided for a minimum of 30 days before native seeding commences. 

 

The soil will be harrowed or raked to create a smooth seedbed, and a roller or cultipacker will be used to 

create a firm seedbed. All seed will be applied by broadcasting, drilling or as otherwise recommended 

by the contracted revegetation specialist. 

 

The proposed seed mix and rate for disturbed buffer areas is State Seed Mix 35-241 (Mesic Prairie 

General) or similar at a rate of 11.5 lbs/acre of grasses and forbs, and 25.0 lbs/acre of cover crop. 

 

Native seed mix used will depend on the hydrologic conditions of the landscape post grading and 

seed availability. Seed shall be purchased from an approved seed company as listed on the MnDNR’s 

native plant nursery list (or approved equal). 

 

Newly seeded areas will be mulched with clean straw at a rate of 1.5 tons per acres. The straw will be 

disk anchored, where accessible. Upon completion of seed installation, a site visit will be conducted 

with the vegetation contractor to confirm seeding was consistent with the approved plan and collect seed 

tags. 



Wetland Buffer Planting and Maintenance Plan 

Koch Farm Sanctuary - Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Disturbed Upland Buffer Maintenance Plan 
 

A standard maintenance plan for areas of disturbed upland buffer is provided below. Revisions to this 

plan may occur. The intent of the management plan is to: 1) promote the growth of native species, and 

2) control noxious and/or invasive species such as Canada thistle. When a noxious or invasive species 

occurs, the appropriate technique to control or eliminate that species will be implemented. 

 

Year 1 (fall dormant seeding) 

• Fall dormant seed as described in the Planting Plan 

 
Year 2 Management 

• Mow 2-3 times with mower deck 6-8 inches off the ground to prevent development of weedy 

species 

• Spot spray perennial weedy species as needed 

 
Year 2 Evaluation 

• Cover crop will be gone unless winter wheat was used in a fall planting 

• Grasses forming clumps 1-6 inches apart in drill rows, but still short 

• Some flowers should be blooming 

• Flush growth of foxtail and other annuals may indicate need for more frequent mowing 

• Supplemental seeding if needed 

 

Year 3 Management 

• Mow 1-2 times with mower deck/bar approximately 12 inches off the ground to control weedy 

annuals 

• Spot spray perennial weedy species as needed 

• Supplemental seeding if needed 

 

Year 3 Evaluation 

• Plantings should include a diverse mixture of native grasses and forbs 

• Plantings should not include more than 50% invasive species 

 



 Main Office: 
3601 Thurston Avenue, Anoka, MN 55303 

Phone:  763/427-5860 
www.haa-inc.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Mark Kaltsas, Independence City Planner/Administrator 
 
CC:  Andrew Budde, City Engineer 
  Shawn Bode, Public Works Supervisor 
 
FROM: Shane Nelson, Water Resources Engineer 
 
DATE: January 3, 2023 
 
RE: Koch Farm – Water Resources Review  
  
 
We have received and reviewed the Construction Plans, dated December 14, 2022, and Stormwater 
Report, dated April 18, 2022, and Koch Farm Sanctuary Creek Crossing report, dated June 3, 2022 for 
Koch Farm prepared by Otto Associates in the City of Independence and the Wetland Delineation 
Report, dated October 21, 2020, prepared by Kjolhaug Environmental Services Company, Inc.  We 
would offer the following comments in regards to water resources: 
 
Koch Farm is a proposed 33 lot, 141.35-acre residential development. The existing site contains a 
mixture of woodland, meadow/wetland and row crops. The site is located 0.6 miles west of Lake 
Independence, and the stormwater discharge from this project is conveyed to Lake Independence via 
natural drainage ways.  Lake Independence is currently listed as an impaired water and has a TMDL 
for nutrients. 
 

1. This project is located in close proximity to Lake Independence, which has an USEPA approved 
TMDL for nutrients.  The Applicant / Contractor will be required to implement additional 
stormwater BMPs and erosion control measures during construction as required by City 
ordinances, watershed rules, and state permitting requirement. 

2. Stormwater is proposed to be managed by the construction of 9 wet sedimentation (NURP) 
basins located within drainage and utility easements.  Additionally, the Applicant is proposing 
the creation of Tree Preservation Areas, Grassland Conservation Buffers, and additional 
Wetland Buffers which will have an environmental and water quality benefit.     

3. Stormwater runoff calculations have been provided and the proposed stormwater BMPs result 
in proposed runoff rates which are the same or lower than existing, as required by City code.   

4. The Applicant has provided soil logs, which generally extend to depths of 14 inches to 24 inches 
below the surface.  Due to the proximity of mottled soil/groundwater, infiltration was not 
feasible.   

5. Water Quality calculations have been provided for this project.  The Total Phosphorous (TP) 
will be reduced from 54.16 lb/yr in the pre-development condition to 39.61 lb/yr in the post 
development condition.  The Total Suspended Solids (TSS) will be reduced from 13,887 lb/yr 
in the pre-development condition to 6,111 lb/yr in the post development condition.  The 
removals for TP and TSS meet City ordinances.   

6. The Wetland Delineation Report has recently been received and a Notice of Decision was issued 
on December 9, 2021 for the wetland boundary and type. 



Koch Farm – Water Resources Review 
Page 2 

   

7. A Wetland Replacement plan will be required for the wetland impacts that are proposed. The 
Applicant shall submit a Wetland Replacement Plan for review and approval. 

8. Buffer strips will need to be established as part of this project. A Disturbed Upland Buffer Areas 
Planting and Maintenance Plan has been provided and has been found to be acceptable.   

9. The proposed buffer monument locations as proposed have been reviewed and have been found 
to be acceptable.   

10. This project will require a watershed permit from Pioneer-Sarah Creek Watershed Management 
Commission.  

11. The project will require a NPDES permit (General Permit MNR100001) from the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency (MPCA). 

 
We recommend approval of the Final Plat contingent upon approval of a Wetland Replacement Plan. 
 
 
 
 



 

H:\INDEPEND_CI_MN\0C1126747\1_Corres\C_To Others\Koch Farm Sac_PrePlatReview_2023-01-03.docx 

 

January 3, 2023 
 
City of Independence 
Attn: Mark Kaltsas 
1920 County Road 90 
Independence, MN 55359 
 
RE: Final Plat Application 
 Koch Family Sanctuary 
 Engineering Review #1 
 
Dear Mr. Kaltsas: 
 
As requested, we have completed an engineering review of the documents submitted on December 15, 
2022 for the above referenced project.  The review is based on documents dated 12/14/2022 and 
prepared by Otto Associates.   Following are my comments for your consideration: 
 
General: 

1. Existing Kochs Xings may have existing private utilities withing the right of way.  The right of 
way vacation process may allow these utilities to remain and easements to be designated.  
Has coordination happened to understand if all utilities will be required to relocate, and that 
no easement will remain for these facilities?  

2. Lot 3 Block 4 has the house pad located in the rear of the property and only about a 15-foot 
width between the D&UE line and wetland buffer line.  It is anticipated that grading for this 
future driveway may be cause future wetland buffer impacts and should be 
addressed/accounted for as part of the final plat.   

3. Lot 4, Block 9 has the house pad located in the rear of the property and does not provide an 
adequate driveway location between the D&UE line and the drain field.  Drain field orientation 
could possibly by adjusted to accommodate the driveway.   

4. In the NW corner of Lot 1, Block 1 there appears to be a field approach to CR 90.  Based on 
aerial photos is appears to actively allows access to both the development land and the land 
to the north.  If access is to be maintained to the parcel to the north an ingress/egress 
easement should be provided across a portion of the lot or the field approach removed or 
relocated to the north.     

5. In many areas the proposed Conservation Easement slightly extends over or stops short of lot 
lines.  It is recommended to try to have the Conservation Easements and associated signage to 
follow lot lines to help minimize future encroachment/land disputes with property owners 
and the city.  Potentially extend the Conservation Easements to: 

a. Lot 2, Block 2 side yard 
b. Lot 1, Block 4 rear 
c. Lot 3, Block 4 side yard near Kocks Crossing 
d. Lot 1-6, Block 5 rear 
e. Lot 4, Block 7 rear 



Final Plat Application  
Koch Farm Sanctuary 
Page 2  
 

H:\INDEPEND_CI_MN\0C1126747\1_Corres\C_To Others\Koch Farm Sac_PrePlatReview_2023-01-03.docx 

 

f. Lot 1, Block 11, rear yard 
 
 Potentially reduce encroachments into lots at: 

g. Lot 1, Block 9 rear 
h. Lot 1-3, Block 8 side & rear 
i. Lot 4 & 5, Block 9 rear 

 
6. D&UE for storm sewer between Lot 4 Block 7 and Lot 6, Block 5 should extent to adjacent 

property lines and be a minimum of 25 feet wide.   
7. EOF is provided in the rear of Lot 6 Block 5.  Provide D&UE over swaleStreet profile from Sta 

26+00-30+00 is at 6.75%.  City ordinance 500.45 Subd. 3 requires minimum street grades for 
Minor Streets to be 6%.   

8. Lot 1, Block does not list a minimum LO elevation.   
9. The ROW stub provided near Sta 10+00 of Williams Way should be rough graded to an 

approximate roadway profile to the western property line.  This will help ensure future 
encroachment agreements are not needed from adjacent property owners and that there is a 
clear expectation that a roadway could be extended through this area in the future.   

10. A rock construction entrance is shown at the east connection with Kochs Crossing.  All 
construction equipment and access to the site should occur from CR 90 to minimize hauling 
and complaints from existing residential properties.  A rock construction access may be added 
to the existing Kochs Crossing connection that would likely get utilized during the earlier 
stages of construction.   

11. Add black on yellow “No Outlet” to Williams Way roadway signage.  
12. Bituminous trail at end of Williams Way exceeds 5% grade and is not ADA compliant.  Provide 

a design that meets ADA requirements ideally with a max grade of 5% or less and ADA 
compliant pedestrian ramps.   

13. All applicable city standard details and specifications should be followed for the final 
construction plans.  

14. The following permits will need to be obtained and copies provided to the City conditional to 
City approval: 

a. NPDES Permit for Stormwater Discharge 
b. PSCWMC Permit 
c. Wetland Conservation Act (WCA) Permit (MCWD and HAA are listed as the LGU)  

15. The applicant will be required to submit a Maintenance Agreement for all stormwater 
management structures and facilities.  The agreement must define maintenance 
responsibilities following completion of project, specify types and frequencies of inspection 
and maintenance activities, designate who will conduct inspection and maintenance activities, 
and outline reporting requirements.   

16. .   
 

 
Grading/Drainage: 

17. Within vacated easement of Kochs Xing there is a culvert on Lot 3, Block 4.  It is recommended 
to remove this culvert and grade to allow the north area to drain to the south via a ditch as 
part of the development grading.  If left in place the culvert would become private and the city 
would not maintain it.   



Final Plat Application  
Koch Farm Sanctuary 
Page 3  
 

H:\INDEPEND_CI_MN\0C1126747\1_Corres\C_To Others\Koch Farm Sac_PrePlatReview_2023-01-03.docx 

 

18. Outlot A: 100yr-HWL of both basins appear to encroach into adjacent lots.  D&UE should be 
adjusted in these parcels to extend over the 100yr-HWL.  Also, a D&UE should be extended 
over all of Outlot A.   

19. The berm in Outlot B appears to fill a portion of a natural low area that may take away some 
of the existing stormwater storage and negatively impact the existing property owner to the 
east.  Has this basin been modeled for impacts?  

20. Outlot C has a basin with a HWL=974.0.  The 974.0 elevation extends well into Lots 2-5, Block 
5.  D&UE should be extended to cover the 100yr-HWL.  Conformation should be provided if 
septic drain fields can be in this easement.   

21. At the eastern connection with Kock’s Crossing it appears that ditch water is conveyed from 
the existing ditches into the proposed ditches.   

22. Lots 1-2, Block 7 are labeled to have Min Low Floor elev of 983.7.  Pioneer-Sarah Creek 
Watershed require 2 feet of freeboard and should be adjusted to 983.8 based on the adjacent 
storm pond 100-yr HWL.   

 
 
 
If you have any questions or comments, please contact me to discuss. 
 
Sincerely, 

Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

 

Andrew Budde, P.E. 
Independence City Engineer 
 

 



2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road – Minor Subdivision	 02.07.2023
	 	
	 Page	1	
 

City of Independence 
Request for a Minor Subdivision to Allow a Lot Line Rearrangement  

Involving the Properties located at 2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road 
 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: February 9, 2023 

Applicants: Chad Greenway 

Owners: Chad Greenway 

Location: 2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road 

 
Request: 
Chad Greenway (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the 
properties located at 2171 Copeland Rd. and 2052 Nelson Rd., Independence, MN (PID No. 19-
118-24-14-0001 and 19-118-24-13-0003): 

  
a. A minor subdivision to permit a lot line rearrangement to adjust the property lines 

between the two subject properties.   
 
 

Property/Site Information: 
There are two subject properties being considered. The applicant owns both properties and has 
an existing home on the north property and recently located a detached accessory structure on the 
south property.  The north property has frontage on Copeland Road and the south property has 
frontage on both Copeland Road and Nelson Road. The property has the following site 
characteristics:    
 

Property Information: 2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road 
 Zoning: Agriculture 
 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage (Before):  PID No. 19-118-24-14-0001  2 acres 
      PID No. 19-118-24-13-0003  3.4 acres 
 

Acreage (After):       5.4 acres 
 
 



2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road – Minor Subdivision	 02.07.2023
	 	
	 Page	2	
 

2171 Copeland Rd. and 2052 Nelson Rd. 

 
 
Discussion: 
The applicant acquired a detached accessory structure (~22’ x 35’) and located on the south 
property which is defined as Parcel A (no principal structure).  The applicant inquired whether or 
not a building permit was required for the accessory structure.  The City reviewed the structure 
and noted that the structure would require a zoning permit and would have to be located on the 
same property as the principal structure (identified as Parcel B).  The applicant asked if they 
could adjust the property line between their two properties.  It was noted that lot line 
rearrangements are permitted in the AG-Agriculture zoning district.  The applicant is now 
seeking consideration of a lot line rearrangement to expand the boundaries of Parcel B and 
reduce the boundaries of Parcel A.   
 

2052 Nelson Road 

2171 Copeland Road 



2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road – Minor Subdivision	 02.07.2023
	 	
	 Page	3	
 

The applicant is proposing to add 2.88 acres from Parcel A to Parcel B in the after condition.  
Parcel A will be reduced from 60.84 to 57.96 acres and Parcel B would be increased from 10.00 
to 12.88 acres. 
 
There are several items that should be noted by the City during consideration of the application: 
 

1. The City does not have accessory structure square footage limitations for properties that 
are greater than 10 acres.  
 

2. Parcel A in the after condition would still have a single building eligibility.   
 

3. The proposed (existing) detached accessory building meets applicable building setbacks 
in the after condition.   

 
4. The existing perimeter drainage and utility easements should be vacated and the requisite 

perimeter easements relating to the revised lot boundaries will need to be dedicated to the 
City.  The applicant shall execute the necessary documents to convey the easements as 
determined necessary by the City. 

 
The proposed subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement appears to meet all applicable 
standards of the City’s zoning and subdivision ordinance.  The revised lots will continue to be 
consistent with the City’s zoning ordinances and Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
Neighbor Comments: 
The City has not received any written comments and no comments were provided at the public 
hearing regarding the proposed minor subdivision. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion and Recommendation: 
Planning Commissioners discussed the requested minor subdivision and asked questions of staff 
relating to the proposed subdivision.  Commissioners clarified that the existing building on the 
Copeland Road property met the requirements for a principal structure.  Staff confirmed that the 
existing building did meet and was considered a principal residence.  Commissioners confirmed 
that proposed accessory structure would meet all applicable setbacks.  Staff confirmed that the 
detached accessory structure meets all applicable setbacks.  Planning Commissioners found that 
the minor subdivision met all applicable criteria and recommended approval to the City Council. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the requested minor subdivision with the 
following findings: 
 



2171 Copeland Road and 2052 Nelson Road – Minor Subdivision	 02.07.2023
	 	
	 Page	4	
 

1. The proposed subdivision allowing a lot line rearrangement meets all applicable criteria 
and conditions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Planning and Land Use Regulations of 
the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
   

2. The applicant shall dedicate the requisite drainage and utility easements to the City.  The 
applicant shall execute the necessary documents to convey the easements as determined 
necessary by the City.  It is recommended that the applicant request vacation of the 
existing perimeter drainage and utility easements. 
 

3. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 
minor subdivision. 
 

4. The applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with Hennepin 
County within six (6) months of approval.  

 
5. The applicant shall execute and record the requisite drainage and utility easements with 

Hennepin County within six (6) months of approval.  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. RESOLUTION No. 23-0209-01 
2. Application 
3. Exhibits Depicting Before and After Conditions 
4. Pictures of Existing Detached Accessory Structure 

 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-0209-01 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW 
A LOT LINE REARRANGEMENT FOR THE TWO PROPERTIES  

LOCATED AT 2171 COPELAND ROAD AND 2052 NELSON ROAD 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 
in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, Chad Greenway (the “Applicants/Owner”) submitted a request for minor 
subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement the two properties located at 2171 Copeland Road 
and 2052 Nelson Road (PID No’s. 16-118-24-13-0003 and 16-118-24-42-0001): (the 
“Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the Properties are zoned A-Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS, the Properties are legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS the requested minor subdivision meets all requirements, standards and 
specifications of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Agriculture lots; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on January 17, 2023, to 
review the application for a minor subdivision, following mailed and published noticed as 
required by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 



 

Chad Greenway and grants approval of a minor subdivision to allow a lot line rearrangement for 
the properties in accordance with the City’s zoning regulations with the following findings and 
conditions: 

1. The proposed subdivision, allowing a lot combination, meets all applicable criteria 
and conditions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Planning and Land Use Regulations 
of the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
   

2. The minor subdivision will allow the subject properties to be realigned as depicted on 
the approved site plan attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 
3. The applicant shall dedicate the requisite drainage and utility easements to the City.  

The applicant shall execute the necessary documents to convey the easements as 
determined necessary by the City.  It is recommended that the applicant request 
vacation of the existing perimeter drainage and utility easements. 
 

4. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 
minor subdivision. 
 

5. The applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with 
Hennepin County within six (6) months of approval.  

 
6. The applicant shall execute and record the requisite drainage and utility easements 

with Hennepin County within six (6) months of approval.  
 
This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 9th day of 
February 2023, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 
 

         

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT B 
(Site Plan) 

 



Applicant Information Owner Information

Name: Chad Greenway

Address: 2171 Copeland Rd. 
Independence, Minnesota 
55359

Primary Phone: 6128044063

Email: cgreenway18@gmail.com

Name: Chad Greenway

Address: 2171 Copeland Rd. 
Independence, Minnesota 
55359

Primary Phone: 6128044063

Email: cgreenway18@gmail.com

Property Address: 2171 Copeland Rd

PID: 19-118-24-14-0001

Planning Application Type: Subdivision

Subdivision Type: Lot Line Rearrangement, Rural View Lot, Minor Subdivision (3 lots or less) 

Description:I am applying for a minor subdivision to permit a lot line rearrangement on my 

property at 2171 Copeland Rd. 

Supporting Documents: Site Survey (Existing Conditions), Site Survey (Proposed Conditions) 

Signature:









Page 1 

 

City of Independence  
Auditor Engagement Proposal  

 
To: City Council 

 
From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
Meeting Date: February 9, 2023 

 

 
Discussion: 
 
The City of Independence has utilized CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) since 2015 to perform 
the annual financial audit.  The City was notified at the end of 2022 that CLA would not be able 
to continue performing the annual audit.  Many metropolitan cities saw similar cancelation of 
auditing services as a result of a lack of staffing for many audit firms.  In response to the 
notification, the City utilized our financial services consultant (ABDO) to assist in identifying 
potential firms and seeking proposals from those select audit firms in Minnesota.   
 
The City received (1) one proposal from BerganKDV to perform services for 2023 (for 2022 
financials) with an option for two subsequent years at an approximate 4% annual increase.  The 
City’s total audit costs in 2022 (for 2021 financials) was $16,500.  The City has known its low 
cost for audit services were of high value for the past several years and anticipated an increase 
at some point moving forward.  The proposed fee for services provided in 2023 is $23,900.  
Please noted that the City will need to adjust the 2023 budget to reflect the additional cost but 
has the ability to move consulting fees to accommodate the increase.   
 
ABDO highly recommends this audit firm and staff believes that BerganKDV will provide a 
high level of service to the City. 

 
 
Council Recommendation: 
 
Council is being asked to consider making a motion to approve engagement with BerganKDV 
to provide audit services for 2023 (for 2022 financials) and authorizing the Mayor and City 
Administrator to execute the engagement letter.    

 
 
Attachments: Fee Proposal from BerganKDV 



 

 

 

 
January 13, 2023 
 
Members of the City Council 
1920 County Rd 90 
Independence, MN 55359 
 
This letter is to provide the proposed audit fees for a three‐year period for the audit of the basic financial 
statements and assistance with the preparation of the basic financial statements as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2022 and an option to extend these services for the year ended December 31, 2023 
and December 31, 2024. Our proposed fees are as follows: 
 
 
December 31, 2022 ‐ $ 23,900  

 
December 31, 2023 ‐ $ 24,850  
 
December 31, 2024 ‐ $ 25,800  
 
 
Single audit fees will be negotiated separately if the City expends more than $750,000 in federal awards. 
 
With the City Council’s approval of the services and fees as outlined above, we will send an engagement 
letter that will confirm and summarize the understanding of the terms and objectives of our engagement. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you. If you have any questions, please let us know. 
 
Sincerely,  

 
Andrew Grice, CPA 
Government Audit Partner 
BerganKDV 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	18-0199 CONST PLANS 12-14-22.pdf
	18-0199 01 SHEET COVER SHEET 12-14-22
	18-0199 02 SHEET GRADING PLAN - OVERVIEW 9-23-22
	18-0199 03 SHEET GRADING PLAN - NORTH 9-23-22
	18-0199 04 SHEET GRADING PLAN - EAST CENTRAL 6-8-22
	18-0199 05 SHEET GRADING PLAN - WEST CENTRAL 6-8-22
	18-0199 06 SHEET GRADING PLAN - SOUTH 6-8-22
	18-0199 07 SHEET SWPPP PROJECT INFORMATION 9-23-22
	18-0199 08 SHEET SWPPP NARRATIVE 6-3-22
	18-0199 09 SHEET SWPPP - NORTH 9-23-22
	18-0199 10 SHEET SWPPP - EAST CENTRAL 6-8-22
	18-0199 11 SHEET SWPPP - WEST CENTRAL 12-14-22
	18-0199 12 SHEET SWPPP - SOUTH 6-8-22
	18-0199 13 SHEET STREET & STORM - KOCHS CROSSING 9-23-22
	18-0199 14 SHEET STREET & STORM - WILLIAMS WAY (STA 0+00 - STA 12+00) 12-14-22
	18-0199 15 SHEET STREET & STORM - WILLIAMS WAY (STA 12+00 - STA 27+00) 12-14-22
	18-0199 16 SHEET STREET & STORM - WILLIAMS WAY (STA 27+00 - STA 39+65) 6-8-22
	18-0199 17 SHEET WETLAND BUFFER & TREE PRESERVATION PLAN 12-14-22
	18-0199 18 SHEET DETAILS 6-3-22
	18-0199 19 SHEET DETAILS 6-9-22
	18-0199 20 SHEET DETAILS 6-3-22

	18-0199 TURN LANE PLANS 8-11-22-COUNTY AND City Signed.pdf
	18-0199 01 SHEET COVER SHEET 8-11-22
	18-0199 02 SHEET TYPICAL SECTION & CONSTRUCTION NOTES 8-11-22
	18-0199 03 SHEET REMOVAL, EROSION CONTROL, & TURF ESTABLISHMENT PLAN 8-11-22
	18-0199 04 SHEET TURN LANE - GRADING PLAN 8-11-22
	18-0199 05 SHEET CONSTRUCTION PLAN & PROFILE - CSAH NO. 90 8-11-22
	18-0199 06 SHEET CROSS SECTIONS 8-11-22
	18-0199 07 SHEET CROSS SECTIONS 8-11-22
	18-0199 08 SHEET CROSS SECTIONS 8-11-22

	IN415 Koch Farm Review Memo 2.pdf
	MEMORANDUM


	CONFIRMATION_2: Independence
	Board Member_8: Brad Spencer
	Board Member_9: Lynn Betts
	Board Member_10: Marvin Johnson
	1_2: April 4, 2023
	2_2: 6:00 pm
	3_2: 1920 County Rd 90
	4_2: Independence, MN 55359
	Board Member_11: 
	Board Member_12: 
	Board Member_13: 
	Board Member_14: 
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off


